
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS AGENDA

MONDAY, APRIL 26, 2021 - 7:00 PM
ORION COMMUNITY CENTER

1335 JOSLYN ROAD
LAKE ORION, MI 48360

1. OPEN MEETING
2. ROLL CALL
3. MINUTES

A. 4-12-2021 ZBA Regular Meeting Minutes
4. AGENDA REVIEW AND APPROVAL
5. ZBA BUSINESS

A. AB-99-02-2021, Dan’s Excavating Inc.; 2985 Judah Rd. (parcel #09-32-400-056); and 
unaddressed land that is that portion of  lot 11 of Mt. Judah Farms south of 2985 Judah Rd. 
excluding the portion of lot 11 of Mt. Judah Farms that is part of Breckenridge Orion 
Condominium (parcel #09-32-400-096); and unaddressed land that is one (1) parcel west of 
2985 Judah Rd. (parcel #09-32-400-095); and 3011 Judah Rd. (parcel #09-32-400-063) 
The petitioner is requesting renewal of an Ordinance No. 99 permit for sand and gravel mining, 
earth excavation, and/or filling and earth balancing with the hours of operation from 7:00am to 
7:00pm
B. AB-2021-03, Justin Brantley, 2191 Pondview, 09-04-126-022  (postponed from 3/22/2021 
Meeting)
The petitioner is requesting 3 variances from Zoning Ordinance #78
Article V, Section 5.04, Zoned SE
1.    A 10-ft. side yard setback variance from the required 20-ft. to build a pole barn 10-ft. from the 
side property line (west) 
Article XXVII, Section 27.02 Lot size 1 to 2 Acres
2.     A 773-sq. ft. variance above the allowed 1,000-sq. ft. Maximum Floor Area of all Detached 
Accessory Buildings, to build a 1,200-sq. ft. pole barn in addition to a 573-sq. ft. above ground 
swimming pool.
3.    A 937-sq. ft. variance above the allowed 1,500-sq. ft. Maximum Floor Area of All Accessory 
Buildings to build a 1,200-sq. ft. pole barn in addition to a 664-sq. ft. attached garage and a 573-sq. 
ft. above ground swimming pool for a Total Maximum Floor Area of All Accessory Buildings of 
2,437-sq. ft.
 
C. AB-2021-10, Gary McHalpine, 2710 Wareing Dr., 09-20-376-010 (postponed from 4/12/2021 
Meeting)
The petitioner is requesting 3 variances from Zoning Ordinance #78 – Zoned R-2
Article XXVII, Section 27.02(A)(4) & Article XXVII, Section 27.05(H)(2) 
1.    A 35-ft. front yard setback variance from the required 35-ft. to erect a 6-ft. privacy fence 0- ft. 
from the property line along Baldwin Rd.
2.    A 10-ft. side yard setback variance from the required 10-ft. to erect a 6-ft. privacy fence 0- ft. 
from the side property line to the north. 
3.    A 10-ft. side yard setback variance from the required 10-ft. to erect a 6-ft. privacy fence 0- ft. 
from the side property line to the south.
D. AB-2021-11, Dave McCaffrey, 252 Shady Oaks, 09-10-209-001
The petitioner is requesting 6 variances from Zoning Ordinance #78
Article VI, Section 6.04, Zoned R-3
1.    A 2.6-ft. side yard setback variance from the required 7-ft. to build a home addition 
4.4-ft. from the side property line (east).
2.    A 1-ft. rear yard setback variance from the required 35-ft. to build a home addition 
34-ft. from the rear property line.
3.    A 2.6-ft. side yard setback variance from the required 7-ft. to add a future deck 4.4-ft from the 
side property line (east).

3

28

51

88

101

1



4.    A 12.74% lot coverage variance above the allowed 25% for a total lot coverage of 37.74%
Article XXVII, Section 27.03
5.    A 5.5-ft. shoreline setback from the required 20-ft. to add a future deck 14.5-ft. from the 
shoreline (to the west).
Article XXII, Section 27.17
6.    An 8.9-ft. wetland setback variance from the required 25-ft. to build a home addition16.1-ft. 
from a wetland (to the west).
E. AB-2021-12, Meijer Inc., 1025 S. Lapeer Rd., 09-14-226-008 & 09-14-112-001
The petitioner is seeking 6 variances from Zoning Ordinance #78 – Zoned GB
Article XIV, Section 14.02 (A)(1)
1.    A 37-ft. setback variance from the required 100-ft. for a drive-thru pharmacy use to be 63-ft. 
from a residential property line.
2.    A 50-ft. setback variance from the required 50-ft. for a circulation lane for a drive-thru 
pharmacy to be 0-ft from a residential property line.
Article XIV, Section 14.04
3.    A 11.17-ft. height variance above the allowed 25-ft. Maximum Height of all Structures for a 
building to be 36.17-ft. tall.
Article XXVII, Section 27.16(B)(1)(a)(i)
4.    A variance from this ordinance section to allow the east façade (323-ft.) and the south façade 
(211-ft.) to be greater than 100-ft. without a recess or projection.
Article XXVII, Section 27.16(C)
5.    A 23% variance above the allowed 60% of off-street parking area located between the front 
façade and an abutting street for a total of 83%.
6.    An 18-ft. setback variance above the minimum required 50-ft. for truck docks to be 32-ft. from 
a residential property. 
The petitioner is also seeking 3 variances from Sign Ordinance 153 – Zoned Non-Residential; GB
7.    A 30-ft setback variance from the required 30-ft. for a ground sign to be 0-ft. from the road 
right-of-way.
8.    A 100.21-sq. ft size variance above the allowed 200-sq.ft. for a wall sign to be 300.21-sq. ft.
9.    A variance for 5 wall signs above the allowed 1 wall sign for a total of 6 wall signs.
10.    A 239.44-sq. ft. size variance above the allowed 200-sq. ft. for a total square footage of all 
wall signs to be 439.44-sq. ft.

6. PUBLIC COMMENTS
7. COMMUNICATIONS

A. Date Certain Memo
B. MAP Virtual Zoning Board of Appeals Workshop

8. COMMITTEE REPORTS
9. MEMBER COMMENTS
10. ADJOURNMENT

In the spirit of compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, individuals with a disability should feel free to 
contact Penny S. Shults, Clerk, at (248) 391-0304, ext. 4001, at least seventy-two hours in advance of the meeting to 
request accommodations.

126

176
177

2



  CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
******  MINUTES  ******

REGULAR MEETING – MONDAY APRIL 12, 2021 – 7:00 PM

The Charter Township of Orion Zoning Board of Appeals held a regular meeting on Monday, April 12, 
2021, at 7:00 pm at the Orion Township Community Center, 1335 Joslyn Road, Lake Orion, Michigan 
48360
 

*Please note this meeting was done virtually via a “Go to Meeting” #914-793-997*

ZBA MEMBERS PRESENT (Board Member Location):
Dan Durham, Chairman Derek Brackon, Secretary 
Don Walker, PC Rep to ZBA             Mike Flood, BOT Rep to ZBA 
Tony Cook, Vice-Chairman 

ZBA MEMBER ABSENT:
None

CONSULTANT PRESENT:
David Goodloe, Building Official

OTHERS PRESENT:
Ron Peshl Chuck DePalma
Robert Sprague Ken Houck
Francis-Luna Guillermo John Van Steenis
Nevin Hubbard Michael Lossing
John Wyatt Robert Cavanagh
Stacey Alexander Bob Alexander
Brenda Hauxwell Tim Hauxwell

1.  OPEN MEETING
Chairman Durham called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm.

2.  ROLL CALL
As noted

3. MINUTES
A. 3-22-2021, ZBA Regular Meeting Minutes
Moved by Board Member Walker, seconded by Vice-Chairman Cook, to approve the minutes as 
presented. Motion Carried

4.  AGENDA REVIEW AND APPROVAL
Moved by Trustee Flood, seconded by Chairman Durham, to approve the agenda as presented.
Motion Carried

5.  ZBA BUSINESS
 
A. AB-2021-04, Charles DePalma, 2698 Wareing Dr., 09-20-376-008

Chairman Durham read the petitioner’s request as follows:

The petitioner is requesting 3 variances from Zoning Ordinance #78 – Zoned R-2:

Article XXVII, Section 27.02(A)(4) & Article XXVII, Section 27.05(H)(2)3



Charter Township of Orion Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes
Regular Meeting – April 12, 2021

2

1) A 35-ft. front yard setback variance from the required 35-ft. to erect a 6-ft. privacy fence 0-ft. 
from the property line along Baldwin Rd.

2) A 10-ft. side yard setback variance from the required 10-ft. to erect a 6-ft. privacy fence 0-ft. 
from the side property line to the north.

3) A 10-ft. side yard setback variance from the required 10-ft. to erect a 6-ft. privacy fence 0-ft. 
from the side property line to the south.

Chairman Durham stated that as they know, living in the area, they have had a bunch of these come in.  
Each one of them is to be looked at by them on its own merit.  Because neighbors were successful, 
there is no guarantee that anybody else will be.  They also have to look at the Practical Difficulty, what 
is it that requires them to get what they want so they can enjoy their property.

Mr. Charles DePalma, 2698 Wareing Dr, the applicant presented.  

Mr. DePalma stated that they are looking to erect a 6-ft. privacy fence as the traffic on Baldwin Road, 
as well as, since the time that they have moved in the recreation path has moved out into the back.  
They no longer enjoy the privacy or the quiet they did when they moved in almost 20-years ago.  He 
said that the traffic has gotten noisy and they were looking to abate some of that noise while restoring 
some of the privacy so they can enjoy their back yard, as they had in the past.  He noted that this was a 
continuation of what was done by homes that are on Eaton Gate and heading south of Eaton Gate, on 
Baldwin the five homes.  They are looking to maintain the exact material and composition of the fence 
so that it gives it a nice uniform look to the neighborhood, as well as, the community, and that will afford 
them that privacy that they had when they first moved in.

Chairman Durham stated that he had looked through some traffic studies, and they don’t reflect that 
there is an increase in traffic yet.  There will be because more people will be moving out here, so 
eventually, there will be more traffic.  He asked with people slowing down when approaching the 
roundabout, does he notice traffic noise?  Mr. DePalma replied a lot more traffic noise because people 
tend to accelerate very quickly coming out of the roundabout at all hours.  He added that what didn’t 
occur now that there is no longer that traffic stop, at Waldon Rd., now there is no longer that stop, and 
as traffic has starting to increase since the pandemic has lessened, they get cars backed up and 
stopped to their house, which is about in the middle block of Eaton Gate.  He said that five years ago 
they cleared out some extra unsightly trees to make their yard look better and all of a sudden, they had 
people wandering off the trail to ask to use the bathroom.  They have had foot traffic, as well as, regular 
traffic and undue burden put on them, that they would like to have that privacy back.

Chairman Durham stated that he was glad that he had mentioned the traffic waiting to go into town 
backing up past their house because it makes him think that sometimes at peak hour’s he might be 10th 
in line to get into the roundabout to go around.  

Trustee Flood stated that it said in his packet that the applicant has lived here for 17 years.  He thought 
that he had seen a lot of change in this community.  Mr. DePalma replied yes, he has.  Trustee Flood 
said that Baldwin Road is not a two-lane road like it used to be, withal the development and widening.  
He stated that he sat on Wareing, and he went back where that other fence stopped, on a weekday and 
also on a weekend.  He said when they exit that roundabout going north, they kick it in the rear-end.  
He also noticed standing behind that fence, that stops a lot of sound from the road.  He went back to 
the open area and he didn’t know how many decibels it was.  Mr. DePalma replied that it is very 
noticeable.  He added that he didn’t notice it when they first moved in but since the roundabouts have 
gone in, they have noticed an increase in decibels and traffic going much faster.

4



Charter Township of Orion Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes
Regular Meeting – April 12, 2021

3

Trustee Flood said that he knew for a fact that all the new development both commercial and residential 
south and north of here, a lot of traffic going north is passenger traffic, they are going up to Oxford, 
Lapeer, Metamora, and then they stack up at Clarkston Rd.  Mr. De Palma replied yes, he said that it 
backs up to his house on Wareing from Clarkston Rd. at busy times.

Chairman Durham said that he did notice in the information that if they make a motion to approve that 
they have to make sure that it includes that they are only allowing a variance for the 6-ft. fence along 
Baldwin Rd. property, and that it should be included in the motion.  He thought that there were some 
concerns that corners would be cut.

Trustee Flood said that the Keatington Home Owners Association, the Architectural Control Committee 
stated that they didn’t have any issues with this, as long as they abide by whatever the ZBA says.

Moved by Trustee Flood, seconded by Vice-Chairman Cook , that in the matter of ZBA case #AB-2021-
04, Charles DePalma, 2698 Wareing Dr., 09-20-376-008, the petitioner is requesting 3 non-use 
variances from ordinance #78 – Zoned R-2, Article XXVII, Section 27.02(A)(4) & Article XXVII, Section 
27.05(H)(2);  1)  a 35-ft. front yard setback variance from the required 35-ft. to erect a 6-ft. privacy fence 
0-ft. from the property line along Baldwin Rd.; 2) a 10-ft. side yard setback variance from the required 
10-ft to erect a 6-ft. privacy fence 0-ft. from the side property line to the north; 3) a 10-ft. side yard 
setback variance from the required 10-ft. to erect a 6-ft. privacy fence 0-ft. from the side property line to 
the south be granted conditioned upon the setback variances from the property lines to the north and 
south of said property is strictly for the 6-ft. privacy fence that will run concurrent alongside Baldwin Rd. 
and the existing safety path only, the intent and purpose is not to put the fence in between the houses 
running east and west;  because the petitioner did demonstrate that the following standards for 
variances have been met in this case in that they set forth facts which show that in this case:  the 
petitioner does show the following Practical Difficulty:  a unique characteristics to this property is having 
two front yards, one fronting on Wareing Dr. and one fronting on Baldwin Rd., the widening of Baldwin 
Rd. and complete connection of the safety path system all the way starting from the south on I-75 the 
path runs north to Indianwood Rd.; the following are exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or 
conditions applicable to the property involved that do not apply generally to other properties in the same 
district or zone:  throughout the last several years Baldwin Rd. traffic volume the emitted road noise has 
increased due to the residential and commercial expansion both to the south and north of this older well 
established subdivision community; the variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a 
substantial property right possessed by other property in the same zone or vicinity based on the 
following findings of facts:  due to the above previously mentioned finding of fact the property owner can 
no longer enjoy the peace, tranquility, as well as, privacy and safety they once possessed; the granting 
of the variance or modification will not be materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially 
injurious to the property or to improvements in such zone or district in which the property is located 
based on the following facts:  the Keatington Home Owners Association, the Architectural Control 
Committee review letter, date stamped received March 3, 2021, has formally accept proposal with the 
exceptions as noted:  the ZBA approval of requested variances, the fence to be constructed with the 
same material and style,  shadow-box as previously approved along Baldwin Rd. only; further, based 
on the following findings of facts, the granting of this variance would not:  impair an adequate supply of 
light and air to adjacent property:  on the contrary installation of this style fence will protect the property 
owner from vehicle headlights on Baldwin Rd. from spilling onto their property and privacy; it will not 
unreasonably increase the congestion on public streets; it will not increase the danger of fire or 
endanger the public safety; it will not unreasonably diminish or impair established property values within 
the surrounding area; or, in any other respect, impair the public health, safety comfort, morals, or 
welfare of the inhabitants of the Township of Orion. 

Roll call vote was as follows:  Cook, yes; Flood, yes; Brackon, yes; Walker, yes; Durham, yes.
Motion Carried 5-0 5



Charter Township of Orion Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes
Regular Meeting – April 12, 2021

4

B. AB-2021-06, Francis-Luna Guillermo, 2686 Wareing Dr., 09-20-376-006
Chairman Durham read the petitioner’s request as follows:

The petitioner is requesting 3 variances from Zoning Ordinance #78 – Zoned R-2:

Article XXVII, Section 27.02(A)(4) & Article XXVII, Section 27.05(H)(2)

1) A 35-ft. front yard setback variance from the required 35-ft. to erect a 6-ft. privacy fence 0-ft. 
from the property line along Baldwin Rd.

2) A 10-ft. side yard setback variance from the required 10-ft. to erect a 6-ft. privacy fence 0-ft. 
from the side property line to the north.

3) A 10-ft. side yard setback variance from the required 10-ft. to erect a 6-ft. privacy fence 0-ft. 
from the side property line to the south.

Mr. Guillermo said that he has two kids one is four and the other is four months.  He thought it was 
scary when people walking by and can see into his house, and felt it was scary because his kids are 
playing.  He was looking for more safety than noise, but that would help a lot.

Chairman Durham asked if it was safe to say that he echoed what was said by the first applicant?  Mr. 
Guillermo replied yes.  

Trustee Flood asked if he was the gentleman that called into the last meeting?  Mr. Guillermo replied 
yes, he is the 6th house.  

Vice-Chairman Cook said they have been getting these, this is a group of 6, the previous time it was a 
group of 5. He asked if the Home Owners Association had spoken to them or was it that they just 
happen to live next to each other?  He questioned how that it was being organized?  For the sack of 
efficiency, they would have a valid thing that they are looking for.  His concern was that they were going 
to have this one started, and then there is going to be patchwork as opposed to having a continuous 
fence.  They know the style they want to erect but what will it look like?  That is why he had some 
concerns about how this was being done.

Mr. Charles DePalma the former Architectural Chairman of Keatington Home Association for six years.  
He stated that at one point they did propose this to move forward but it did not go through because of 
cost considerations.  They are doing it this way now and doing it in groups of 5 because they were told 
that the ZBA would only take 5-6 of them at a time.  They are trying to do it in consecutive order with 
the same materials, same construction, and the same contractor as much as they can to keep it a 
uniform look. They are looking to maintain the value of their homes, and do it in that order. So, right 
now this is the next set of 5 homes plus one homeowner that lives a few doors down.  There is a rental 
property in there that has not been addressed yet but the other neighbors down to the Wamsley 
entrance, will be coming in in the next group, and they are looking to maintain the same construction, 
materials, look, and functionality of the 6-ft. shadow-box.  It is a very high-quality 5/8-inch plank.  Again, 
they want to maintain their property values of the homes and the consistency. In their deed restrictions, 
not their by-laws it says a fence can be put up as long as it is the same construction, materials, and 
look from the previous fence in a continuous phase, 5-homes then the next 5-homes and so on.

Moved by Trustee Flood, seconded by Chairman Durham, that in the matter of ZBA case #AB-2021-06, 
Francis-Luna Guillermo, 2686 Waring Dr., 09-20-376-006, I move that the petitioner’s request for: 3 
non-use variances from Zoning Ordinance #78 – Zoned R-2, Article XXVII, Section 27.02(A)(4) & Article 
XXVII, Section 27.05(H)(2); 1) a 35-ft. front yard setback variance from the required 35-ft. to erect a 6-ft. 

6



Charter Township of Orion Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes
Regular Meeting – April 12, 2021

5

privacy fence 0-ft. from the property line along Baldwin Rd.; 2) a 10-ft side yard setback variance from 
the required 10-ft. to erect a 6-ft. privacy fence 0-ft. from the side property line to the north; 3) a 10-ft. 
side yard setback variance from the required 10-ft. to erect a 6-ft. privacy fence 0-ft from the side 
property line to the south be granted conditioned upon the setback variances on the property lines to 
the north and south said properties are strictly for the 6-ft. privacy fence the runs concurrent along side 
Baldwin Rd. and along the existing safety path only, not to go east and west between the houses; 
because the petitioner did demonstrate that the following standards for variances have been met in this 
case in that they set forth facts which show that in this case:  the petitioner does show the following 
Practical Difficulty a unique characteristic to this property is having two front yards one facing on 
Wareing Dr. and one facing Baldwin Rd., the widening of Baldwin Rd. and the complete connection of 
the safety path system all the way from south at I-75 north to Indianwood Rd.; the following are 
exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions applicable to the property involved that do not 
apply generally to other properties in the same district or zone: throughout the last several years 
Baldwin Rd. traffic volume, and emitted road noise has tremendously increased due to mainly the 
increase in residential and commercial expansion both to the south and north of this older well 
established Keatington subdivision community and of the widening of Baldwin Rd.; the variance is 
necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a substantial property right possessed by other 
property in the same zone or vicinity based on the following facts:  due to the above previously 
mentioned findings of facts the property owner can no longer enjoy the peace tranquility as well as 
privacy and safety that they once possessed; the granting of the variance or modification will not be 
materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially injurious to the property or to improvements in 
such zone or district in which the property is located based on the following findings of fact:  the 
Keatington Home Owners Association, Architectural Control Committee review letter date stamped 
received March 9, 2021 has formally excepted the proposal with the following exceptions as noted:  
ZBA approval of requested variances and the fence to be constructed of the same material and type, 
shadow-boxes as previously approved fences along Baldwin Rd. only;  further, based on the following 
findings of facts, the granting of this variance would not:  impair an adequate supply of light and air to 
adjacent property: the installation of this style of fence will protect the subject project owner from vehicle 
headlights spilling on to their property and for privacy; it will not unreasonably increase the congestion 
in public streets; it will not increase the danger of fire or endanger the public safety; it will not 
unreasonably diminish or impair established property values within the surrounding area; or, in any 
other respect, impair the public health, safety, comfort, morals, or welfare of the inhabitants of the 
Township of Orion.

Roll call vote was as follows:  Brackon, yes; Cook, yes; Walker, yes; Flood, yes; Durham, yes 
Motion Carried 5-0

C.  AB-2021-07, Kenneth Houck, 2692 Wareing Dr., 09-20-376-007
Chairman Durham read the petitioner’s request as follows:

The petitioner is requesting 3 variances from Zoning Ordinance #78 – Zoned R-2:

Article XXVII, Section 27.02(A)(4) & Article XXVII, Section 27.05(H)(2)

1) A 35-ft. front yard setback variance from the required 35-ft. to erect a 6-ft. privacy fence 0-ft. 
from the property line along Baldwin Rd.

2) A 10-ft. side yard setback variance from the required 10-ft. to erect a 6-ft. privacy fence 0-ft. 
from the side property line to the north.

3) A 10-ft. side yard setback variance from the required 10-ft. to erect a 6-ft. privacy fence 0-ft. 
from the side property line to the south.7



Charter Township of Orion Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes
Regular Meeting – April 12, 2021

6

Mr. Kenneth Houck, 2692 Wareing Dr. the applicant presented.

Mr. Houck stated that they have pretty much the same issues that everyone else has.  They have had 
people, since the safety path has been there, have cut through their yard to get to the beach faster 
because they don’t want to walk down to Eaton Gate. The noise has just been terrible the people go 
through these roundabouts, and when they get to the last one, they are pumped up with aggression.  
They have two lanes behind them, actually one is a left turn where they can go around, they get on 
there and they drag race to Eaton Gate.  He has a hard time just sitting in the family room with the door 
wall open, trying to listen to the TV because the noise is so up and down.  

Trustee Flood said that the applicant has lived there for almost 26 years.  Mr. Houck replied yes, when 
he moved here there was a McDonald’s, a bowling alley, and an IGA on Baldwin.  They could use their 
back deck they haven’t used their back deck in the last two–three years.  He is getting elderly, he and 
his wife can’t hear as well, and half of the time they can’t even talk to each other.

Moved by Trustee Flood, seconded by Vice-Chairman Cook, that in the matter of ZBA case #AB-2021-
07, Kenneth Houck, 2692 Wareing Dr., 09-20-376-007, I move that the petitioner’s request for 3 non-
use variances from Zoning Ordinance #78 – Zoned R-2, Article XXVII, Section 27.02(A)(4) & Article 
XXVII, Section 27.05(H)(2); 1) a 35-ft. front yard setback variance from the required 35-ft. to erect a 6-ft. 
privacy fence 0-ft. from the property line along Baldwin Rd. only; 2) a 10-ft. side yard setback variance 
from the required 10-ft. to erect a 6-ft. privacy fence 0-ft. from the side property line to the north; 3) a 
10-ft. side yard setback variance from the required 10-ft. to erect a 6-ft. privacy fence 0-ft. from the side 
property line to the south be granted conditioned upon the setback variances from the property lines 
from the north and south of said property is strictly for the 6-ft. privacy fence that runs concurrent on 
Baldwin Rd. and the existing safety path only the fence is not to run east and west between the houses 
because the petitioner did demonstrate that the following standards for variances have been met in this 
case in that they set forth facts which show that in this case:  the petitioner does show the following 
Practical Difficulty the unique characteristics to the property is having two front yards, one facing on 
Wareing and one facing Baldwin Rd., the widening of Baldwin Rd. and the complete connection of the 
safety path system all the way starting south of I-75, north to Indianwood Rd.; the following are 
exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions applicable to the property involved that do not 
apply generally to other properties in the same district or zone:  throughout the last several years 
Baldwin Rd. traffic volume and emitted road noise has tremendously increased due to the residential 
and commercial expansion to the south and north to this older established neighborhood community; 
the variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of  a substantial property right possessed 
by other property in the same zone or vicinity based on the following facts:  the property owner can no 
longer enjoy the peace tranquility, as well as, privacy and safety that they once possessed; the granting 
of the variance or modification will not be materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially 
injurious to the property or to improvements in such zone or district in which the property is located 
based on the following findings:  the Keatington Home Owners Association, Architectural Control 
Committee review letter date stamped received March 9, 2021 has formally excepted the proposal with 
the following exceptions as noted:  ZBA approval of requested variances and the fence to be 
constructed of the same material and style, shadow-boxes as previously approved fences along 
Baldwin Rd. only;  further, based on the following findings of facts, the granting of this variance would 
not:  impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property due to: the installation of this style 
of fence, will protect the subject project owner from vehicle headlights on Baldwin Rd. from spilling on to 
their property and for privacy; it will not unreasonably increase the congestion in public streets; it will not 
increase the danger of fire or endanger the public safety; it will not unreasonably diminish or impair 
established property values within the surrounding area; or, in any other respect, impair the public 
health, safety, comfort, morals, or welfare of the inhabitants of the Township of Orion.

Roll call vote was as follows:  Walker, yes; Brackon, yes; Flood, yes; Cook, yes; Durham yes. 
Motion Carried 5-0

8



Charter Township of Orion Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes
Regular Meeting – April 12, 2021

7

D. AB-2021-08, Robert Sprague, 2704 Wareing Dr., 09-20-376-009

Chairman Durham read the petitioner’s request as follows:

The petitioner is requesting 3 variances from Zoning Ordinance #78 – Zoned R-2:

Article XXVII, Section 27.02(A)(4) & Article XXVII, Section 27.05(H)(2)

1) A 35-ft. front yard setback variance from the required 35-ft. to erect a 6-ft. privacy fence 0-ft. 
from the property line along Baldwin Rd.

2) A 10-ft. side yard setback variance from the required 10-ft. to erect a 6-ft. privacy fence 0-ft. 
from the side property line to the north.

3) A 10-ft. side yard setback variance from the required 10-ft. to erect a 6-ft. privacy fence 0-ft. 
from the side property line to the south

Chairman Durham said let us know what is different.

Mr. Sprague stated that the only thing that is different in his case is that he has lived here for over 50 
years.  He moved in June of 1970, and the noise has gotten worse since the road has been improved.  
There is a lot more traffic than there ever has been.

Vice-Chairman Cook asked what happened to the vegetation in the back of his yard?  Mr. Sprague 
replied that they planned to put in arborvitaes but that was before they found out somebody wanted to 
put up a fence. The fellow that was going to put in the arborvitaes suggested that they cut the 
vegetation down to give more light to the arborvitaes because they would do better in the first year or 
two.  But if they have a fence it is going to defeat that issue.  That was their reasoning for cutting it all 
down, but felt that it will all grow back.

Moved by Trustee Flood, seconded by Secretary Brackon, that in the matter of ZBA case #AB-2021-08, 
Robert Sprague, 2704 Wareing Dr., 09-20-376-009, I move that the petitioner’s request for 3 non-use 
variances from Zoning Ordinance #78 – Zoned R-2, Article XXVII, Section 27.02(A)(4) & Article XXVII, 
Section 27.05(H)(2); 1) a 35-ft. front yard setback variance from the required 35-ft. to erect a 6-ft. 
privacy fence 0-ft. from the property line along Baldwin Rd. only; 2) a 10-ft. side yard setback variance 
from the required 10-ft. to erect a 6-ft. privacy fence 0-ft. from the side property line to the north; 3) a 
10-ft. side yard setback variance from the required 10-ft. to erect a 6-ft. privacy fence 0-ft. from the side 
property line to the south be granted conditioned upon the setback variances from the property lines 
from the north and south of said property is strictly for the 6-ft. privacy fence that runs concurrent along 
the side of Baldwin Rd. and the existing safety path only the fence is not to run east and west between 
the houses because the petitioner did demonstrate that the following standards for variances have been 
met in this case in that they set forth facts which show that in this case:  the petitioner does show the 
following Practical Difficulty the unique characteristics to the property is having two front yards, one 
facing on Wareing and one facing Baldwin Rd., the widening of Baldwin Rd. and the completed 
connection of the safety path system all the way starting south of I-75, north to Indianwood Rd.; the 
following are exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions applicable to the property 
involved that do not apply generally to other properties in the same district or zone:  throughout the last 
several years Baldwin Rd. traffic volume and emitted road noise has tremendously increased due to the 
increased residential and commercial expansion to the south and north to this older established 
neighborhood community; the variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of  a 

9



Charter Township of Orion Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes
Regular Meeting – April 12, 2021

8

substantial property right possessed by other property in the same zone or vicinity based on the 
following facts:  the property owner can no longer enjoy the peace tranquility, as well as, privacy and 
safety that they once possessed over the past 50-years; the granting of the variance or modification will 
not be materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially injurious to the property or to 
improvements in such zone or district in which the property is located based on the following findings:  
the Keatington Home Owners Association, Architectural Control Committee review letter date stamped 
received March 9, 2021 has formally excepted the proposal with the following exceptions as noted:  
ZBA approval of requested variances and the fence to be constructed of the same material and style, 
shadow-box as previously approved fences along Baldwin Rd. only;  further, based on the following 
findings of facts, the granting of this variance would not:  impair an adequate supply of light and air to 
adjacent property due to: the installation of this style of fence, will protect the subject project owner from 
vehicle headlights on Baldwin Rd. from spilling on to their property and their privacy; it will not 
unreasonably increase the congestion in public streets; it will not increase the danger of fire or 
endanger the public safety; it will not unreasonably diminish or impair established property values within 
the surrounding area; or, in any other respect, impair the public health, safety, comfort, morals, or 
welfare of the inhabitants of the Township of Orion.

Roll call vote was as follows:  Durham, yes; Brackon, yes; Cook, yes; Walker; yes; Flood, yes. 
Motion Carried 5-0

E. AB-2021-09, Ronald Peshl, 2734 Wareing Dr., 09-20-376-020

Chairman Durham read the petitioner’s request as follows:

The petitioner is requesting 3 variances from Zoning Ordinance #78 – Zoned R-2:

Article XXVII, Section 27.02(A)(4) & Article XXVII, Section 27.05(H)(2)

1) A 35-ft. front yard setback variance from the required 35-ft. to erect a 6-ft. privacy fence 0-ft. 
from the property line along Baldwin Rd.

2) A 10-ft. side yard setback variance from the required 10-ft. to erect a 6-ft. privacy fence 0-ft. 
from the side property line to the north.

3) A 10-ft. side yard setback variance from the required 10-ft. to erect a 6-ft. privacy fence 0-ft. 
from the side property line to the south.

Chairman Durham asked the petitioner to introduce himself and to let them know if anything is different.

Mr. Ron Peshl, 2734 Wareing the applicant presented.

Mr. Peshl stated that he has been in the area for 37 years and has been on Baldwin for a while.  He 
said this wasn’t something that they hadn’t tried before but was something that they didn’t have the true 
support of the Association at the time.  He thought it was nice that they were getting some backing and 
was something that they all want to do.

Vice-Chairman Cook said that he drove the street and he was trying to figure out between 2710 and 
there was another house and then he was 2734.  He asked the house between him and 2710, what 
was the story there?  Mr. Peshl replied that he has a double lot he incorporated into his property 25 
years ago.  They have Bill Avery who is in the process of putting his paperwork in, and then there is the 
rental house, and then they have Gary McHalpine he is next.  They do have a rental home there and he 
wasn’t sure that a lot of contacts had been made. He added that over the years there hasn’t been a lot 

10



Charter Township of Orion Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes
Regular Meeting – April 12, 2021

9

of involvement in the neighborhood.  He wasn’t sure about the rental house, he knew that everyone but 
that house, and they might now, has the paperwork to come before them.  

Vice-Chairman Cook questioned if he had a double lot?  Mr. Peshl replied yes.  Vice-Chairman Cook 
asked if he intended to fence both lots?  Mr. Peshl replied yes.  Vice-Chairman Cook asked the way 
that this is written does that cover that?  Mr. Peshl said that it was all incorporated and was all under 
one Sidwell.  Trustee Flood said that it is one lot now, they combined the two lots.

Vice-Chairman Cook asked regarding the rental house if anyone had any contact with that owner?  Mr. 
Peshl replied he had not.  Vice-Chairman Cook asked if that was something that the Home Owners 
Association can actively go after, or potentially them do themselves?  Mr. Peshl said that they could 
suggest it to Alex at the Association, the Architectural gentleman.  He added that he knew that there 
was not a lot of response from, he thought his name was Art, that owns the house. He has owned it for 
a long time.  Vice-Chairman Cook said that if there is a gap there that still leaves a route, that is why he 
was asking the question.  Mr. Peshl said that he can’t speak from them.

Chairman Durham said that if the rental house doesn’t get involved the open spot will be a funnel for all 
the people to use coming off the safety path, they will just find the one place that they can get through 
and cut in that way.  He knew that there was nothing that they could do.

Moved by Trustee Flood, seconded by Vice-Chairman Cook, that in the matter of ZBA case #AB-2021-
09, Ron Peshl, 2734 Wareing Dr., 09-20-376-020, I move that the petitioner’s request for 3 non-use 
variances from Zoning Ordinance #78 – Zoned R-2, Article XXVII, Section 27.02(A)(4) & Article XXVII, 
Section 27.05(H)(2); 1) a 35-ft. front yard setback variance from the required 35-ft. to erect a 6-ft. 
privacy fence 0-ft. from the property line along Baldwin Rd. only; 2) a 10-ft. side yard setback variance 
from the required 10-ft. to erect a 6-ft. privacy fence 0-ft. from the side property line to the north; 3) a 
10-ft. side yard setback variance from the required 10-ft. to erect a 6-ft. privacy fence 0-ft. from the side 
property line to the south be granted conditioned upon the setback variances from the property lines 
from the north and south of said property is strictly for the 6-ft. privacy fence that runs concurrent along 
the side of Baldwin Rd. and the existing safety path only the fence is not to run east and west between 
the houses because the petitioner did demonstrate that the following standards for variances have been 
met in this case in that they set forth facts which show that in this case:  the petitioner does show the 
following Practical Difficulty the unique characteristics to the property is having two front yards, one 
facing on Wareing Dr. and one facing Baldwin Rd., the widening of Baldwin Rd. and the completion of 
the safety path system which starts all the way from south of I-75, north to Indianwood Rd.; the 
following are exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions applicable to the property 
involved that do not apply generally to other properties in the same district or zone:  throughout the last 
several years Baldwin Rd. traffic volume and emitted road noise has tremendously increased due to the 
widening of Baldwin Rd. and the increased residential and commercial expansion to the south and 
north to this older well established neighborhood community; the variance is necessary for the 
preservation and enjoyment of  a substantial property right possessed by other property in the same 
zone or vicinity based on the following facts:  the property owner can no longer enjoy the peace 
tranquility, as well as, privacy and safety that they once possessed of living on this property for 37-
years; the granting of the variance or modification will not be materially detrimental to the public welfare 
or materially injurious to the property or to improvements in such zone or district in which the property is 
located based on the following findings:  the Keatington Home Owners Association, Architectural 
Control Committee review letter date stamped received March 9, 2021 has formally excepted the 
proposal with the following exceptions as noted:  ZBA approval of requested variances and the fence to 
be constructed of the same material and style, shadow-box as previously approved fences along 
Baldwin Rd. only;  further, based on the following findings of facts, the granting of this variance would 
not:  impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property due to: the installation of this style 
of fence, will protect the subject project owner from vehicle headlights on Baldwin Rd. from spilling on to 
their property and their privacy; it will not unreasonably increase the congestion in public streets; it will 

11



Charter Township of Orion Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes
Regular Meeting – April 12, 2021

10

not increase the danger of fire or endanger the public safety; it will not unreasonably diminish or impair 
established property values within the surrounding area; or, in any other respect, impair the public 
health, safety, comfort, morals, or welfare of the inhabitants of the Township of Orion.

Roll call vote was as follows:  Brackon, yes; Cook, yes; Walker, yes; Flood, yes; Durham, yes. 
Motion Carried 5-0

F. AB-2021-10, Gary McHalpine, 2710 Wareing Dr., 09-20-376-010

Chairman Durham read the petitioner’s request as follows:

The petitioner is requesting 3 variances from Zoning Ordinance #78 – Zoned R-2:

Article XXVII, Section 27.02(A)(4) & Article XXVII, Section 27.05(H)(2)

1) A 35-ft. front yard setback variance from the required 35-ft. to erect a 6-ft. privacy fence 0-ft. 
from the property line along Baldwin Rd.

2) A 10-ft. side yard setback variance from the required 10-ft. to erect a 6-ft. privacy fence 0-ft. 
from the side property line to the north.

3) A 10-ft. side yard setback variance from the required 10-ft. to erect a 6-ft. privacy fence 0-ft. 
from the side property line to the south.

Chairman Durham asked if the petitioner was present?

Mr. Charles DePalma 2698 Wareing Dr., stated that Mr. McHalpine has been here for over 50-years.  
He added that for the privacy and enjoyment of the lot they are looking for that fence for him.  Chairman 
Durham asked if Mr. McHalpine couldn’t make it or was just not serious about this?  Mr. DePalma 
replied he believed that he just couldn’t make it, but wasn’t sure.  He knew he was serious about it.  

Board Member Walker said procedurally he didn’t think that Mr. McHalpine has given Mr. DePalma 
permission to present on his behalf.  Mr. DePalma replied that he has not.  Board Member Walker said 
they were just assuming and questioned if they could proceed?  Trustee Flood said that there would 
have to be a letter from the applicant with permission for someone to represent him.  He thought it 
would appropriate to postpone this case until the next ZBA meeting in two weeks.  Chairman Durham 
noted that there will be more of these so he wouldn’t be unnecessarily punished for being pushed back.

Moved by Trustee Flood, seconded by Chairman Durham, that the Planning Commission postpones 
ZBA case #AB-2021-10, Gary McHalpine, 2710 Wareing Dr., 09-20-376-020, due to the applicant not 
being present, or not having a designated person that could speak on his behalf, to be postponed to the 
April 26, 2021, ZBA meeting.

Discussion on the Motion:

Board Member Walker asked what if the petitioner can’t make it on the 26th?  Trustee Flood said 
that they have to do a date certain or they will have to readvertise.  

Roll call vote was as follows:  Flood, yes; Cook, yes; Brackon, yes; Flood, yes; Durham yes. 
Motion Carried 5-0

12



Charter Township of Orion Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes
Regular Meeting – April 12, 2021

11

G. AB-2021-05, Robert Cavanagh, 893 Indianwood, 09-03-252-010

The petitioner is requesting 2 variances from Zoning Ordinance #78 – Zoned R-3

Article XXVII, Section 27.02 – Lot size over 2.5 acres

1) A 1,263-sq. ft. variance above the allowed 1,400-sq. ft. Maximum Floor Area of All Detached 
Accessory Buildings for a 1,440-sq. ft. pole barn, an 843-sq. ft pumphouse, a 260-sq. ft. gazebo, 
and a 120-sq. ft. greenhouse.

2) A 1,339-sq. ft. variance above the allowed 1,900-sq. ft Maximum Floor Area of All Accessory 
Buildings for a 576-sq. ft. attached portico, a 1,440-sq. ft. pole barn, an 843-sq. ft. pumphouse, a 
260-sq. ft. gazebo, and a 120-sq. ft. greenhouse.

Mr. Robert Cavanagh, 893 Indianwood the applicant presented.

Mr. Cavanagh stated that he has been a resident of Orion Township since 1996.

Chairman Durham stated that he had a fairly busy application.

Secretary Brackon said that from everything that he has read it seemed that his neighbors are alleging 
that he doesn’t live up to his side of the bargain or the contracts that he enters into, and promises that 
he makes.  He asked if they were to grant what he is requesting here, what assurance can he provide 
Orion Township that he won’t build things bigger and do things not authorized by the Zoning Board of 
Appeals or the Township?  Mr. Cavanagh replied that he has a survey and on the survey are the 
existing structures that they are talking about tonight.  He added that the addition above the 1,900-sq. 
ft. for the accessory structure and that is the gazebo, pumphouse, and greenhouse.  Those are the 
three accessory structures that are above and beyond the current 1,900-sq. ft. for an accessory 
structure, and those are currently in place now, today, in states of completion.  Those are the three 
exact structures that they are talking about.  Mr. Cavanagh stated that if he goes rogue then Orion 
Township’s Code Enforcement would come out and slap a sticker on him.  He said that he believed that 
he has lived up to every fulfillment so far with the Zoning & Building Departments.  

Secretary Brackon asked if he had read their responses?  Mr. Cavanagh replied no, and was surprised 
to see such a great turnout.  Secretary Brackon said on the application it asked if he had received any 
ordinance violations up to this point and that was left blank, he didn’t check yes or no on that.  He asked 
assuming this was an oversite can you answer that question?  Mr. Cavanagh replied that at the time 
that he filled out the application he had not received any violations on the 3 items that they are talking 
about the gazebo, pumphouse, or the greenhouse.  It was the gazebo that was brought to his attention 
first.  Secretary Brackon asked if he had received ordinance violations on the property at all, since he 
had owned it?  Mr. Cavanagh replied he couldn’t recall, he thought maybe the Building Department 
might know.  He thought maybe there was one with the silt fence and one dump truck load of dirt that 
came in with some concrete block in it.  He stated that he immediately addressed that right away, and 
he has stepped up observations on any dirt that he is bringing in.  

Secretary Brackon asked what the intentions were with the greenhouse?  Mr. Cavanagh replied that he 
loves tomatoes, basil, and green peppers, not marijuana.  

Chairman Durham asked if he was currently building permitted for everything that he has going?  He 
asked if he pulled building permits for everything?  Mr. Cavanagh replied the gazebo no, that was built 
from trees that were on the property, that had fallen, 180-year-old pine trees that were blown down from 
the storm a couple of years ago.  Chairman Durham stated that he would not have recognized what he 13



Charter Township of Orion Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes
Regular Meeting – April 12, 2021

12

had done there as a building if the Building Department didn’t tell him what it was.  He understood that.  
He asked if the other things had building permits pulled?  Mr. Cavanagh replied the gazebo, he didn’t 
think he needed one.  He added that the pumphouse has been there since 1979 when they built the 
development for the condominiums, so that structure was there.  He added that as he worked his way 
into the property cutting back all the bittersweet vines, pulling the trees off the building, and removing 
the roof, the contents, pipes, and tanks from within side there.  He was left with a concrete slab and so 
he didn’t pull a permit on the property when he originally bought it.  Chairman Durham asked if he 
wanted to reroof that?  Mr. Cavanagh replied correct.  He added that he wanted to restore it to the 
original dimensions and heights that are there.  Chairman Durham asked if he would have to pull a 
permit for that.  Mr. Cavanagh replied absolutely.  Building Official Goodloe said if it is over 200-sq. ft. 
Chairman Durham asked about the pressure tank, and if it was leaving it?  Mr. Cavanagh replied yes.  
Chairman Durham asked about the shipping containers?  Mr. Cavanagh said that the shipping 
containers were brought into the property shortly after purchasing it, he moved from his house off of 
Central, from a house with a three-car garage to a condo with a small one car garage.  He had his tools 
and furniture in the two shipping containers.  He checked with the township and read the rules and 
there was not anything said about shipping containers.  He called and spoke with zoning enforcement 
and was left with a sense that shipping containers were allowed.  But both shipping containers he has 
buyers for both of them, and they will be removed as soon as he has the concrete on the pole barn then 
he will move the valuables, his tools and, the remaining houseware items into the barn. 

Chairman Durham asked if they were being used for secure storage now?  Mr. Cavanagh replied 
absolutely.  Chairman Durham asked if he would be willing to make some type of a time statement to 
the Building Department or someone in the Township about the time that they would be removed.  Like 
you intend to get rid of them two years from now if he is still thinking about it if it hasn’t accomplished 
what folks are going to want.  Mr. Cavanagh said that he had drawn up a project timing for his house 
from start to finish that he was willing to share with the Board   On there, the items that are being 
removing are the shipping containers after the concrete is poured, he had a target date of June 31, 
2021.  

Chairman Durham said that he drove along the high road after he left his place, and especially with no 
leaves on anything, he was surprised how little he could see from up there.

Trustee Flood asked how long he owned the property since he purchased it from the Township?  Mr. 
Cavanagh replied that he purchased it in November 2016.  Trustee Flood said what he was having 
difficulty with was that pumphouse was never removed.  He added that is why the Township Board at 
the time, the cost of flooding those wells and tearing that all out was estimated, from Mr. Cavanagh to 
the Township Board at $30,000.  Mr. Cavanagh replied that is correct.  He added that three of the wells 
that they are not using got plugged.  The remaining wells that are still open and valid he is using, he 
was drinking the water from one of the existing wells, which is what he drinks every day.  He said the 
care of the property is critical to him.  What goes on and, in the ground, he drinks the water from the 
well that was originally there.

Trustee Flood asked what was the reason for keeping the pumphouse?  He said at one time Mr. 
Cavanagh said that it would reduce the value of the property and that it was a liability.  Mr. Cavanagh 
replied that the pumphouse at the time when he purchased the property was a dangerous structure to 
go into.  He said that once he got into it and cut the trees off of it, he used the large backhoes to get the 
trees off of it, removed the tank, and systematically made the structure safe, there are three remainder 
walls, and a solid slab, he stabilized the structure.  He said the structure at the time, was a hazard but 
he has had every contractor that has come out has stated that it is a solid insulated brick cinderblock 
wall with a brick facing on top of it.   He has had more contractors ask why he would want to tear it 
down they say to keep the structure and retain it.  

14



Charter Township of Orion Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes
Regular Meeting – April 12, 2021

13

Mr. Cavanagh stated that he has fulfilled his contract to the Township, all of them, the wells, everything.  
He stated that the $24,000 to demolish the structure, what he would like to do is to take that money and 
reinvest it into the structure by putting a roof and a garage door on it and park the remaining building 
materials, pipes, tractor, and a lawnmower in there.  He added then he would pull the building permit 
and he would have a taxable structure on there, and then the Township would be better off with some 
income.  He said at this time of year they can see from Fernhurst, they can partially see some of the 
structure, it would look complete.  It would be a lower structure than the current pole barn and it would 
look nicer to the people that look at the structure through the woods. 

Vice-Chairman Cook asked how many total wells are there.  Mr. Cavanagh replied that three test wells 
that were plugged, as well as, three water wells, and all three of those he is currently using.  Vice-
Chairman Cook asked if he only plugged the test wells?  Mr. Cavanagh replied that is correct, the wells 
he is not using.

Vice-Chairman Cook applauded him for having a timeline for when he would be getting these things 
accomplished.  He said he read something about the front of the property, or they were talking about 
the pocket park, or the public piece.  He asked if that piece had been done, the contractual agreement 
with the Township?  Mr. Cavanagh replied yes it was done.  He said that the donation by him of .56-
acres to the Township as a potential future site for a safety path, pocket park, or a parking zone, that 
was all in writing and signed and he had paid for the survey by him at the point of purchase.

Vice-Chairman Cook stated that when Mr. Cavanagh bought the property it had a six-figure appraisal 
on it.  He asked what did he have to do when he bought the property to get the Township to agree to go 
that low on the price?  He asked what did the property look like?  Mr. Cavanagh replied that he believed 
that Trustee Flood may have had the document of the letter that specifically broke, first of all, the comps 
were not very accurate to the relative property.  All the comps did not include unbuildable wetlands, 
conservation easements, and didn’t include the failed construction of condominium buildings up on the 
front three acres with remaining a couple of manholes, fire hydrants, and the low-quality clay dirt that 
they had put in the front field.  He said that it was a very long list but there is a letter in the documents, 
there was also to remove the trash, remove the abandoned vehicles, remove the piles of broken 
concrete, abate the wells that were not being used, remove the pumphouse, and clean up the property.

Vice-Chairman Cook said so what he is understanding is that he has cleaned up an eyesore.  He asked 
the piles out front, what is he doing there?  Mr. Cavanagh replied that the vision was after he moved in 
and accessed the property, they removed the asphalt millings from the front 3-acres of the property, 
scrapped them off, and made a base for the driveway.  Then they planted grass seed, and trees, trying 
to get the area green, he then starting maintaining the property by mowing it.  The following year went 
by and they watched that the quality of green of the grass growing up was poor.  There was also a 
small stagnate pond that sat in the middle of that field, that was in 2017, watching it and maintaining it.  
In 2018 they approached the Township, him and his neighbor to the west of him, and they talked about 
how they could beautify the property in between them, and they thought that the safety path was going 
to come along, and wasn’t sure how that was going to look if it ever comes through.  They contacted 
the Township, they put them in touch with OHM, and they confirmed that it was on the south side of the 
road, and their initial draft proposals of how they would handle that was with a retaining wall using 
block.  They told OHM that it sounded expensive, and they said yes, the additional money to build the 
ground up and stabilize and level it.  They said they would like to bring up the ground between the 
neighbor’s property and his, and he is trying to do a land balancing to eliminate the stagnate water on 
the front of the property and also bring in topsoil dirt to grow grass and trees.  They brought that to the 
Township as a proposal, and at that point, he filed for a land balancing permit, and the soil erosion 
permit at that time.  In 2018 they brought in quite a bit of dirt, he thought it was 10,000-yards, and at the 
end of the year they brought in a dozer and leveled it off.  He was conscious that it does look terrible 
but they are trying to get to an end goal.  They leveled that off, let it sit over winter, and in the summer 
of 2020, they brought in more dirt, and the weather changed before they could get that leveled out.  He 

15



Charter Township of Orion Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes
Regular Meeting – April 12, 2021

14

said that he was out there this spring already and they got about 25% of the piles knocked down, and 
would like to get that leveled off as soon as possible.  That item was also in his construction project 
timeline.

Vice-Chairman Cook said that he had started with a property that was in poor shape, and he has said 
he has lived up to the timelines so far, and these additional requests that he has tonight - he asked are 
they additional things that he has already accomplished, or is he behind or off schedule on some 
things?  He said he is asking this question because he is trying to figure out why so many people have 
signed this thing against what he is trying to do.  Mr. Cavanagh replied that he is currently on the 
property with a temporary C of O.  In his timeline his target is to complete the final C of O on May 31, 
2021.  Those items are the exterior wood staining, cover foundation insulation, east property 10-ft. berm 
with a ¼ grade.  Vice-Chairman Cook said you have a plan, you are working on the plan, he asked if he 
had shared that plan with any of the neighbor’s, or have any come and asked him where he stands with 
the project?  Mr. Cavanagh replied that no one has come to him and asked him anything.  Vice-
Chairman Cook asked if that was something that he would share with the neighbors if they were to 
come to him and ask?  Mr. Cavanagh replied absolutely.  

Chairman Durham asked Building Official Goodloe if the pumphouse was a preexisting nonconforming 
structure?  Building Official Goodloe replied yes.  He said it was conforming until he built the garage, 
then that became nonconforming.  Chairman Durham asked if Mr. Cavanagh was to come to him with 
plans to build a pumphouse out in the field, that is not something that they would embrace under 
today’s codes?  Building Official Goodloe replied it depended on if it was over 200-sq. ft.  then he 
would, have to have a building permit.  Chairman Durham asked looking at the repairs that he wants to 
make, before they issue a permit, would they inspect to determine the amount of damage to where he 
felt it could be rehabbed or come down?  Building Official Goodloe replied that if the pumphouse was to 
come down it would have to have a permit to remove it as a demolition permit. 

Chairman Durham asked Building Official Goodloe that if it were marginal would an inspector look at it 
and determine that it needs to come down if it was not safe?  Building Official Goodloe replied yes.  
Chairman Durham asked at that point they would pull a demo permit, not a building permit?  Building 
Official Goodloe replied yes.

Board Member Walker asked in this memorandum from the neighbors are a bunch of allegations that 
he did not fulfill the terms of his agreement with the Township according to the 2016 contract.  He 
asked if there were things that he didn’t do that he was supposed to do under the terms of those 
agreements?  Mr. Cavanagh said that he has a copy of the contract if they would like to review it.  He 
added that as a matter of fact, he made sure that all the contractual agreements were completed back 
in 2018 when he came to the ZBA last time.  

Chairman Durham said if he did what he said he was going to do, it should be reflected in the Building 
Departments if the proper channels were followed, if he failed that would be reflected, again, if the 
proper channels were followed.  Chairman Durham asked if he had confidence, if people were to dig 
into this are they going to find out that what you said you would do, you did?  Mr. Cavanagh replied that 
he had absolute confidence.  

Building Official Goodloe stated that he has dealt with Mr. Cavanagh on several occasions. He said the 
one thing that they did agree on was when the structure for the barn was built the pumphouse was 
going to come down.  He felt that he has changed his mind about taking that down.  That is why they 
are here, with the structures already being built.  They had no issue because they wanted to help him 
with his timeline and getting that done, so they said that he could build this because obviously, this is 
going to come down.  They talked about it and now he is thinking he wants to keep it, now that he has 
looked at the foundation and found it to be in good shape.  He added that the gazebo and the 
greenhouse he was not aware of those until he went for his variances.  He said that the gazebo looked 

16



Charter Township of Orion Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes
Regular Meeting – April 12, 2021

15

like a tree fort so it wasn’t an issue for them, it was under the square footage, it didn’t have a roof.  He 
said that he has worked with him on several things and he has had no issues as of yet.

Chairman Durham asked Building Official Goodloe if he thought it was within his rights to change his 
mind about tearing down the pumphouse?  Building Official Goodloe replied yes.  He added that it is not 
unreasonable to see after pulling the trees off of it and then see that the structure was not in bad shape, 
when it was covered in trees and thinking that they would have to tear it down.

Mr. Michael Lossing, 586 Fernhurst, a neighbor of the applicant.

Mr. Lossing stated that back in May 2019 the applicant requested a building permit for a pole barn of 
1,320-sq. ft., which is represented in the plans in exhibit “H”.  In his variance request, he is asking for 1, 
440-sq. ft. so they have a difference of 120-sq. ft.  He wasn’t sure if this was a mathematical error or if 
they are trying to ghost-free space?  He said that the pumphouse in his plans show a total of 830-sq. ft., 
however, the variance he is asking for 843-sq. ft., so a difference of 13-sq. ft.   Where he is confused is 
when the petitioner asked for a building permit for the pole barn and if they count the 830-sq. ft. which is 
based on his original plans, he didn’t know what the square footage was, because they have two 
numbers.  The maximum size of his pole barn should have been only 570-sq. ft., so the building permit 
should not have been issued until the variance was requested.  However, here we are today, a building 
permit was submitted, it was approved, for something that already exceeded the zoning ordinance.  
Now they have a pumphouse, which in his first offer, which is also in the petition, claims that it was 
about $30,000 to have it taken apart and moved off of his property, because as he stated in his first 
offer letter, which he believed was $70,000, that it was a source of contamination and it was a hazard it 
was not safe for the property or anyone near it which is why it was supposed to be removed.  Also, why 
he was allowed to purchase a piece of property that was appraised for $215,000 but sold for $92,500 
which is a loss to the Township and taxpayer dollars of about $122,000?  He believed that if the 
petitioner wants to maintain the pumphouse, he should have to return the $30,000 back to the 
taxpayers.  The gazebo was not made from fallen down trees it was made by cut down trees.  They 
have neighbors that have taken video of them cutting down the trees and then making the gazebo.  In 
addition to that, there was no building permit requested, Building Official Goodloe informed the 
neighbors that if it exceeds 200-sq. ft. it does not need a building permit, as they found out today it is 
260-sq. ft., again, no building permit pulled no variance requested.  The greenhouse no building permit 
requested and it is already built.  A portico, he wasn’t sure what that was but it is 576-sq. ft.  What he 
was trying to understand from the Building Department, the Township Board, is the order of operation 
when someone is asking for building permits?  Do they look at it holistically and find out if the request is 
going to violate an ordinance?  They will find that in section 4 the basis of their objections where he was 
reading from.

Mr. Lossing said the other issue they have is parcel B, which is for the pocket bike path.  The petitioner 
stated that he has deeded the property.  He asked if the Township received a copy of this deed?  If it 
was truly deeded it should be on the record and should have been done 7 days of the purchase, it 
should be on record.  He was confused why no one knows that answer.  Trustee Flood stated that the 
Clerks office would know that.  Mr. Lossing stated that they had FOIA’d that information and they have 
seen no record of it.  He wanted to verify that the petitioner has followed the agreement for the 
purchase of this property.

Chairman Durham said they are there, just so everyone is aware, they are there to address yes or no 
on two variances only.  Him asking them about a building permit is completely pointless because he 
doesn’t know the standards for building permits, that would come from elsewhere in the Township.  He 
appreciated him making his concerns known for the record.  He said that he is asking questions that 
they are not in the position to have an opinion on.  They are asked to have a position on these 
variances only.  Mr. Lossing thought that they were directly related to the variance request.17



Charter Township of Orion Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes
Regular Meeting – April 12, 2021

16

Mr. Lossing said that on April 5, 2021, Orion Township Planning & Zoning Coordinator, based on an 
FOIA request from the neighborhood, requested building plans, according to that, which they will find in 
exhibit K, there had been no building plans for these accessory structures, there was simply a one-page 
handwritten note of square footage.  He stated that he didn’t know how they move forward when there 
is not a formal building plan.  He thought that it was odd to request a variance when he doesn’t have a 
building plan, especially knowing that they have an issue with the square footage numbers not aligning.  

Chairman Durham stated that Mr. Lossing is giving numbers and square footage, if he doesn’t go to the 
property and it doesn’t sound like he has much interaction with the neighbors – he questioned how he 
would know how accurate his numbers are?  Mr. Lossing replied based on FOIA requests.  Chairman 
Durham asked from time past?  Mr. Lossing replied yes, as well as, present, within the last 2 weeks.  
Mr. Lossing said that a lot of effort has been put into this.

Secretary Brackon asked if he authored the memorandum booklet?  Mr. Lossing said he was one of 
several that pulled the data together.  Secretary Brackon asked why Mr. Cavanagh was not provided a 
copy of it?  Mr. Lossing said that he assumed that he could FOIA the information, and he has not been 
a good neighbor, and that he has had zero interaction with the neighbor.  He added understandably so, 
as they read through the booklet and he thought most people could understand why.  He felt that would 
go for the 13ish people that have signed this document of the relationship in the neighborhood.

Secretary Brackon said he could appreciate that but he is involved in adversarial processes involving 
courts and that sort of thing daily.  He said the one thing he did know is regardless of how adversarial 
things may become there is always full disclosure, they file a document, there is a full response, there is 
a reply, so everything is open, there is no defense by surprise or that sort of thing.  That was his only 
concern that there was something, it just didn’t sit right with him that it wasn’t provided to him.  When 
people are confident in their position and they want everyone to know it, who cares if the other side has 
a copy of it because they were confident in their position.  

Ms. Brenda Hauxwell 616 Fernhurst said that they just put this all together today.  She just got it over to 
the Township at 12:30P.  She stated that she did have a copy for Mr. Cavanagh.  She asked if they 
would like her to submit that to him now.  She didn’t know if it was required, she was told to make seven 
copies, five for the Board Members, one for Building Official Goodloe, and one for the Township, they 
did not mention Mr. Cavanagh, and she apologized.  

Board Member Walker said what they have here is animosity among neighbors.  He said to give Mr. 
Cavanagh the memorandum booklet would be a good thing, but they are not a court of law they can’t 
tell them what to do.  She was told right about the number of copies they need.  He agreed with 
Secretary Brackon they have to share information.  Ms. Hauxwell said that she wouldn’t have seen him 
until tonight anyway, so the last time they came to a Board meeting they provided him a copy.  Board 
Member Walker said that Ms. Hauxwell had been there since 7 pm.  Ms. Hauxwell said she didn’t know 
the rules.  Board Member Walker said it is not a rule.  Ms. Hauxwell said she can’t speak for everybody 
but she can say that unfortunately the last Board meeting that they had when the last variance was 
denied, Mr. Cavanagh kind of retaliated against the people that signed, and everyone that signed got 
huge boulders put in front of their property, and no trespassing signs on a tree that faced their front 
door. He made their street look terrible.  When they ask why did all these people sign, those are just 
some of the reasons.  There were a lot of people that didn’t sign because they were afraid of retaliation.  
She felt that was a terrible way to live.  Their neighborhood has been going through this since 2018 
when he came to them because he wanted a variance to build a pole barn so close to the road, and 
that is when they found out about the 20-ft. that didn’t get dedicated the way it was supposed to be.  
Since then, it has just been an awful journey. She agreed that yes, there might be some animosity but 
they have had a terrible way to go and have been trying to figure how to fix it, how to have a beautiful 
street, how to feel good about paying their taxes as lakefront homeowners, and then looking out the 
other side of our door and seeing boulders and piles of dirt, no trespassing signs, rusted containers, 

18



Charter Township of Orion Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes
Regular Meeting – April 12, 2021

17

and silt fences, more debris, tires, piles of brick, more debris than when he bought the property.  It has 
been a really hard way to go, and they have been really upset, and this is supposed to be their happy 
place.  They come home from work on a Friday, they want to enjoy the lake, and then there is the 
boulder, and what is he going to do now.  She felt they all lived feeling intimidated, she was speaking 
for herself, but speaking to people on the road and trying to get signatures, several people that didn’t 
sign because they were afraid of retaliation.  

Mr. Lossing said based on the petitioner’s original offer letter, which he believed was February 10, 2016 
letter he wrote “I currently drive by this property twice a day.  The condition of the property and its care 
has been substandard for the last 40-years.  If you accept my offer for the property, he will commit his 
resources to clean up this property, increase value to the neighborhood and the Orion community.”  Mr. 
Lossing said that the exact opposite has happened since he has owned this property.  He has 
systematically and purposely degraded the surrounding area by installing these ridiculous boulders 
along the disputed right-of-way on the road.  He also put in, what he considered a berm, which is 
nothing more than he didn’t know how many yards of unclean fill-dirt was filled with discarded 
construction material, concrete blocks.  When the complaint was made, all he did was add more dirt on 
top of that.  From what he understood from Zoning Ordinance #78, Section 28.04, the berm has to be 
covered with grass, ground cover, or shrubbery, none of that is happening.  There is still a silt fence up, 
the berm is uneven, it doesn’t look like a berm.  Chairman Durham asked how long it had been there?  
Mr. Lossing replied 2-years possibly longer.  He thought that the neighbor that lives across the street 
that has to look at it daily could give them a more accurate time.  Chairman Durham said more than 
adequate growth time.  Mr. Lossing said more than adequate, but it is not stable and he keeps dumping 
more dirt on it, so anything that potentially would grow, he has just covered it.  The shipping containers, 
he made a complaint to Building Official Goodloe, he explained that the petitioner was allowed to have 
these because he is preconstruction.  They are beyond construction, from what he could tell, in Ord. 
#78, that storage of building materials or structures to store it is only allowed for 60-days, they are now 
going on three-plus years, they have to go.  He touched on all the fill dirt on the front of the property, 
there were hundreds of dump truck loads being dropped.  He stated that he runs by the property almost 
daily when the trucks were dumping it, it wasn’t just fill-dirt, there was other debris mixed in with the dirt.  
He said also on the berm, Ord. #78, Section 27.05, there is supposed to be irrigation for the berm, 
either underground irrigation or if that is not available, then one hose bib needs to be within 100-ft.  
Building Official Goodloe stated that was a commercial requirement not for a residential berm.  Mr. 
Lossing said that he stood corrected, and thanked Building Official Goodloe.  

Building Official Goodloe said that they were there to talk about two variances.  The reason they are 
here is for those structures.  He stated that Mr. Cavanagh was informed that they are over and they 
either have to come down or he has to come in and get variances.  There is a history with the road and 
animosity and that is why the berm is getting build because one person believes that everyone is 
peaking in on him, it is just a whole mess.  They are there to talk about two variances, not all these 
issues.  He has touched on every one of these issues, and Mr. Cavanagh has worked with him on 
them.  They are working through them, they have got the debris removed from the berm that was a 
problem, they went out and did that, they got a soil erosion permit, they have had three wetland 
complaints all of them, no issues.  They do have the containers but it was an actual construction site.  
They try to look at things with common sense, he is using that to store his tools and keep them on the 
site.  Mr. Cavanagh was told by Code Enforcement two days ago about the timeline to get them out of 
there.  They are following through on everything.  He didn’t want to get off-topic because they are 
talking about these structures in particular.  He is here because they told him he has these structures 
they either have to go or he has to get a variance.

Mr. Lossing said he thought from Building Officials Goodloe’s position, he understands why he says 
what he did when he is sitting there.  He said to be a resident and a neighbor he thought his 
perspective would change.  19



Charter Township of Orion Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes
Regular Meeting – April 12, 2021

18

Mr. Lossing wanted to highlight again on the variance request, the square footage numbers don’t match 
the original building permit.  Something needs to be removed to get down to the 1,400-sq. ft., either the 
pole barn needs to be reduced in size down to the 570-sq. ft if he wants to maintain the pumphouse, or 
the pumphouse needs to go because the other long-term concern is, should the petitioner decide to 
split this property then they are going to have a nonconforming piece of property.

Chairman Durham asked that for anyone else to come up, and express something that wasn’t already 
said in previous comments, something that would be particular to your situation.

Mr. Nevin Hubbard 1055 Seneca said that he lived across and down Indianwood Rd., from Mr. 
Cavanagh’s property.  He said he disagrees with the general impudence of Mr. Cavanagh’s character 
that has been characterized there.  He said that he has worked with him for many years, and in many 
parental activities, and found him to be a trustworthy and good person to work with.  He wanted to 
make those statements just as a counterpoint to much of what they have just heard. He added that he 
was excited for someone who lives in the area to see the front of the property improved, and to start to 
see greenery in the front and hopefully the public pathway as well.

Ms. Brenda Hauxwell said her concerns with the variances were the five structures that he wants to put 
on that piece of the property seemed excessive.  She thought this seemed reactive to her, these 
structures have already been built and thought that they should have asked for a variance before they 
build structures not after.  She hoped that it would have been more proactive that these structures that 
were there were actual building plans and that they were discussed and brought forth in a pre-
construction period and wasn’t sure why that didn’t happen.  In her opinion that the variances should be 
denied and that they should go back to the drawing board.  The reason they are bringing up all these 
other things is that they do want to work with Mr. Cavanagh.  She didn’t think that these variances 
would not be that big of a deal at all and thought people would agree to them, but please get the 
boulders off of the road.  The garbage trucks are sliding sideways on the ice.  Most of the time on a side 
of a road in the snow or an icy situation you can get off to the side a little bit to get a grip with the tire, 
they can’t do that on the road.  The road was so bad, it was like putting salt in their wounds.  She said 
someone had said what would it take for you to get these people to agree, she thought that they would 
be ok with this, but please the rocks the dirt, they can’t use the road properly anymore.  People that 
want to park on the side of the road, because there are people that do and they have parked on the 
side of the road for the last 35-years.  There is a big boulder there that they are smashing their doors 
into, it is just not neighborly.  She said that is why she thinks they went down that road is because they 
do want to work, they do want it to be better and this is their chance to say “hey let’s give a little bit, you 
give we give”.  

Secretary Brackon asked Ms. Hauxwell, from what he is hearing, it sounds like she didn’t have a 
problem with the pole barn, the pumphouse, the gazebo, the greenhouse, or the portico that he wants 
to build.  He asked if that was correct?  Ms. Hauxwell replied that she thought it was a little excessive 
and that it was a lot of structures, however, she thought if that berm was pretty, if they didn’t have to 
see everything, like the tires, the rocks, debris, silt fence, everything and it was all cleaned up, and Mr.  
Cavanagh was a little more neighborly she didn’t think that they would all be there today, and she didn’t 
think that all these people would have signed this petition.  In her opinion, she would not care that much 
about it.  Now, did he do everything that he was supposed to do, did he plug all the wells, no he didn’t.  

Secretary Brackon said he just wanted to know about those structures and those variances and what 
problems people have with those structures and the potential variance.  Ms. Hauxwell said that she 
thought that it was excessive, however, she also thought that it seemed reactive, that all these things 
got built, it is backward, this is not how it normally happens.  Usually, they ask for a variance and then 
they get approved or denied, and then they build.  She added that all of these structures are built.  
Secretary Brackon asked if her argument would be different if they weren’t?  Ms. Hauxwell said they 
would come and discuss it, they would either approve a variance, and they were for it or not, they didn’t 

20



Charter Township of Orion Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes
Regular Meeting – April 12, 2021

19

have that opportunity, these structures are built.  They are built they are there but that is why they went 
down that road with the dirt and the rocks because she thought that they all would be very open to 
allowing a lot of things had that last denial of the last variance been so reactive.  She added that she 
can only speak for herself.  

Mr. Greg Haase 552 Fernhurst Ct., stated that he has come before this Board previously to get some 
variances approved himself, and he has run into some snags with them. Must less of an issue than 
what Mr. Cavanagh is asking for.  He had a deck he wanted to put on, the built was about 75% lot 
coverage of which they indicated that they would not approve it so it shot down the other items that they 
would have approved.  He didn’t agree with what he was trying to do, he just built his house thereon 
Fernhurst, spent an awful amount of money doing it, he doesn’t like looking across the street, coming 
down the street, and seeing his berm that he has built.  He asked if there was an ordinance that says 
how high that he can build a berm?  Building Official Goodloe said he wasn’t 100% sure.  Mr. Haase 
added that in another city it was 4-ft, that he lived in.  That berm has to be 10 or 12-ft. tall, it is ugly and 
nasty. He drives in and he sees all his commercial containers out there, it is ugly out there. Whoever 
said on the Board that they drove by and that it looks gorgeous, it looks like crap out there.  He didn’t 
know what they are were seeing, that they weren’t seeing from their side of the street.  He at one time 
tried to purchase that property and he was told $400,000 plus $1,000 to buy it and told them if the price 
goes down to let him know.  Well, somehow it never got back to him from the realtor that he called and 
it was sold to Mr. Cavanagh for ninety some thousand dollars.  He didn’t understand why he needs all 
this extra square footage on his property when the rest of them have to come in and ask for way 
smaller variances than what he is asking for and get turned down for it with legitimate reasons.  He 
didn’t believe it with a residential property that he needs all that extra square footage that he is asking 
for.  He didn’t believe that was mentioned earlier that he submitted proper plans to the city to build any 
of his structures that are out there, if so, the city would have turned him down and cited him for building 
not according to the plans.  He never submitted plans of where those are going to be on his property all 
he did was submit the square footage of them.  He asked how can the city than say it is within the 
variance of the setbacks and all that?  He said that he had to go through so many things in building his 
house all legitimate, all very good items, and felt that the Building Department did a fantastic job 
covering his back and building his property.  But he did everything right, he submitted his plans, if there 
was anything that he needed a variance for he asked for it, once he asked for it and it was approved 
that is when he went ahead and built.  Mr. Cavanagh is doing everything backward, he built, in his 
opinion with the assumption of coming here and approving something that he has already done.  His 
mistake is not their problem, it is his problem, and he should have come to them before he built 
anything, submitted proper plans, a topography where he is backfilling it on his land, and what he plans 
to do when it is all done and said for approval with them.  He didn’t agree that he should have the right 
to build his structures, and then come back and ask for variances, that is not the way things are done.  
If they approve it something is wrong, because there is a procedure put in place, they request a 
variance, they submit the plans, it is inspected, it gets approved and it is done.  He didn’t do it that way, 
it is not their fault it is his fault.  He respectfully asked them to follow their rules and ordinances because 
he didn’t follow his and turn down his request for variances.

Mr. Tim Hauxwell 616 Fernhurst asked Building Official Goodloe if he has ever forced someone to tear 
down a structure that was built before getting a permit? Building Official Goodloe replied yes.  Mr. 
Hauxwell asked if he has ever denied a request for a variance when they go 30% over square foot 
variance on a property?  Building Official Goodloe replied that he doesn’t deny variances those are up 
to the Board.  Mr. Hauxwell asked the Board if that has happened?  Chairman Durham replied yes.  Mr. 
Hauxwell asked Building Official Goodloe if he has forced people to tear things down?  Building Official 
Goodloe replied yes.

Mr. Hauxwell said as a resident doesn’t he have the right to come up and say anything that he wants?  
Whether if it pertains to anything that they are talking about?  He added that he has the right to say 
whatever he wants and he has the time allotted to say it.  He said that he has been a landscaper for 40-

21



Charter Township of Orion Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes
Regular Meeting – April 12, 2021

20

year in this town, he has been shut down for a silt fence not being properly installed.  He said that silt 
fence has not been properly installed, he has buried none of it, it is supposed to have an 8-inch trench, 
not one foot of that has been buried.  He has witnessed water running right under it, where he is 
allowed to go because of the no trespassing signs, the water goes right under the fence, it is not right.  
He has been shut down because his tractor was not parked in the right spot on a job.  To watch him 
after hours in the dark, driving his tractor around at 11 or 12 at night, what is he doing over there in the 
dark, why can’t he do it in the day?  He asked if Building Official Goodloe knew what he was doing in 
the middle of the night with his tractor?  Building Official Goodloe replied no.  

Mr. Hauxwell said he was ticketed for putting clean fill on that property, which he had permission to do, 
but the Township stepped in and ticketed him.  They forced him to remove all the topsoil, he used it on 
other jobs, out of spite.  He said he was supposed to be assisted by a previous tenant and another 
contractor that dumped the dirt there, none of those people helped him he did it all by himself.  Then 
this is what Tim London said at the end, he asked Tim London if it was good enough, he cleaned off so 
many yards and asked him to come look at it, and Tim told him he was going to look at Google images 
and see if he did a good job and that was the end of it.  He paid a fine and did all that work and it is all 
similar stuff that is happening there.  They FOIA’d the request to dump that soil and there is no record 
of any kind of a permit, for all that dirt that was poured out front. He asked Building Official if they went 
over 100-yards?  Building Official Goodloe said not if they have an active construction site.  Mr. 
Hauxwell said it was his understanding is if they have over 100-yards it would have to be inspected by 
the Township.  He asked if they inspected any of that?  Building Official Goodloe replied yes, Tim 
London and they have a Soil Erosion Permit and they inspect that all the time.  Mr. Hauxwell asked if he 
inspected the silt fence on the property?  Chairman Durham asked if they could veer back on course.  
Mr. Hauxwell wanted to know if Building Official Goodloe inspected the silt fence that is on the property.  
Chairman Durham said that it is not part of what they are here to discuss tonight. Mr. Hauxwell asked if 
he was going to answer it?  He said he has the right to ask any question that he wants.  He added that 
he has a time limit, when his time is done just tell him.  Board Member Walker said that they don’t have 
time limits they were trying to nice to everybody, they want to hear everybody.  He said that the bottom 
line is they are here for two variances nothing else.  

Building Official Goodloe said that Mr. Hauxwell can stop by anytime to discuss this, his door is always 
open.  Mr. Hauxwell said it needs to be denied and the structures need to be torn down just like they 
have done to a lot of other residences.  He felt that is what needed to happen.

Secretary Brackon asked if the variances are denied would Orion Township, then be required to force 
the demolition of some of the structures to comply?  Building Official Goodloe replied yes, but the 
applicant does have the right to appeal, if not they would arrange something and talk to him to get a 
timeline of when they would be removed.  He added that is why they are there because Mr.  Cavanagh 
knows that.  

Building Official Goodloe said that the gazabo he was not aware of. When he issued the garage permit, 
he was aware of the pumphouse, there was an agreement that it was going to be taken down, they 
spoke about it, he had no issue with it, he took him at his word that he said that he would take it down.  
He said ok because he needed to get his barn moving so he could get going on it.  He tried to work with 
the gentleman.  Then he put up the gazebo, he believed, it didn’t seem like a structure and understood 
how it could be overlooked on his part.  When they went out there, he told him that he would have to 
remove the gazebo, and he told them that he was going to go for a variance for that in the spring, and 
they told him ok.  He added that it is on a very large parcel that it was tucked back in.  They had no 
issues with waiting until the springtime to rectify these situations.

Chairman Durham said listening to both sides of this, this is a neighborhood dispute.  It is not ever 
going to be solved to everyone’s satisfaction.  It could be solved by some give and some give on both 
sides of this.  He said it was a shame that there are sides. He said that he has been involved in 

22



Charter Township of Orion Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes
Regular Meeting – April 12, 2021

21

enforcement his entire adult life, been to court many times, and he begs people to please keep their 
future in their own hands, deal with it yourself.  If you have a problem with a neighbor, and you are not 
at risk, deal with it with the neighbor talk about it try to get it going.  Because when you step outside and 
put your future in someone else’s hands, nobody knows what the outcome is going to be.  He stated 
that folks talk about, and he gets it, he sees this and he sees that, his ground is fallen off way below 
Fernhurst.  He could see them walking out their front door and being able to see everything that is 
going on down there because it is a lot lower than their property.  He stated that the part of the 
ordinance that they are talking about is for lot sizes over 2.5-acres, and he has 10-acres, so he is way 
over 2.5-acres.  Does that make a complete difference, no, but does he look at the vast size of the 
property, when he looks at what he believes to be a relatively small request, he does, he is one vote.  
The answer is here in this room.  If Mr. Cavanagh is not playing fair with the Building Department it will 
be a mistake because it will come up.  

Board Member Walker asked if they had enough time to discuss this amongst themselves and meet 
with Mr. Cavanagh, they could resolve this stuff amongst themselves over a cup of coffee.  Secretary 
Brackon said or maybe even with a mediator.

Mr. Haase said he didn’t think that there would be any communication between himself and Mr. 
Cavanagh he is the kind of guy when you are building a house and you meet him, he says are you 
going to need some extra space for your building materials?  I won’t charge you much to put it on my 
land. He added 10-acres of land and he wanted to charge him to put stuff out there.  He is the same 
kind of guy that has a character that is renting the property next door to him, that he didn’t believe was 
classified as a rental property, in which he comes out and complains about dirt on the land. You guys 
are asking if we can communicate with him and this is the kind of thing that he does that makes them 
not want to communicate with him.

Board Member Walker said that here is the kind of people we are, they are going to take a vote, either 
Mr. Cavanagh is going to be very unhappy, and he is going to be happy, or you are going to be very 
unhappy and he is going to be happy, and if he is happy with that, they are good to go.  Mr. Haase said 
he appreciated his comments, but what he doesn’t understand is, they are already unhappy. He added 
that he shouldn’t be able to go build structures without permits.  If he would have asked for variances 
and permits and provided the proper plans that everyone can view that they are supposed to be able to 
view when somebody requests a variance, they wouldn’t be there.

Chairman Durham said there are 10 or more of them involved in the situation.  He asked if he thought if 
they got together and picked four representatives to discuss it with Mr. Cavanagh?   Mr. Haase said he 
can’t imagine him doing anything for them, he doesn’t even want to pay one penny to improve that 
road.  He wants everybody on his side of the road to pay for everything and he wants to pay nothing.

Chairman Durham asked Mr. Cavanagh if it would be possible for him to work with them?  Mr. 
Cavanagh replied yes.  He added that he has been working with the Township with one of the 
Township Board members over the last two years to review a plan to improve Fernhurst.  Mr. Cavanagh 
said when he moved to the street, he did his best to go out and shake hands with the neighbors and 
introduce himself.  

Mr. Cavanagh stated that with regards to the complaints of the neighbor, to the best of his ability all his 
plans and prints that he submitted have been accurate to the Township.  The gazebo, it was his 
intention, and he told Building Official Goodloe that once they get the excavator, they are going to tear 
that down.  The pumphouse they did clean it out, and contractors asked him why would he do such a 
silly thing, restore it.  That is why he was there.  That structure was built in 1976, so he didn’t build that 
after the fact that was there. The gazebo is what started all of this because he didn’t think that he 
needed a permit for a gazebo.  Knowing now he should have come forth and done that.  He told 
Building Official Goodloe and explained the situation to him and told him that he was going to be over 

23



Charter Township of Orion Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes
Regular Meeting – April 12, 2021

22

his square footage on your accessory structure with that addition of the square footage of that gazebo.  
He said he immediately stopped and there is no roof on it and hasn’t touched it since.  Since that time 
of being contacted about the gazebo, he has had more time to access the structure of the pumphouse, 
it would create value for him, he would like to restore it, not any taller, make it look nice, and create 
value for him.  He added that the harbor freight greenhouse is 10x12 and he bought it because he likes 
growing vegetables.  He wanted to put that on there. He didn’t want to get into another dispute down 
the road because he followed what he thought were the rules regarding the shipping containers.  His 
timeline is that the shipping containers are going to leave on June 31, 2021, which is when they will be 
moving the shipping containers.  He hoped that would make everyone check one item off their letter of 
discontent.  He said that the front field is being improved upon.  He appreciated everyone’s patience, 
and he apologized that it looked terrible, but it will look great when it is all said and done, he is going to 
be very proud of how that front field looks when people come in down Indianwood Rd.  He stated that 
the berm, he is currently under a temporary C of O, a permit is not closed out of the Fernhurst home, 
please rest assured, and he has on his timeline completion of the final C of O completion of May 31, 
2021, and one of those list items is the berm that Mr. Haase complained about.  He agreed and was 
sorry that it looked terrible but he did put it up there because of all of the frivolous complaints that he 
has been getting.  He said it will be built to spec and to his site plan, it was on the site plan, and it was 
approved by the Building Department, 10-ft. berm with a 1 to 4 slope.  He said he will plant pine trees 
and some wildflowers with grass.

Chairman Durham said that he did see some boulders along that road.  If he did have anything to do 
with putting them in there, can he see how that could be viewed as punitive by some people?  Mr. 
Cavanagh replied yes sir I do.  

Mr. Cavanagh said regarding the boulders, the Oakland County Road Commission has been contacted 
about that, and he wanted the audience, he could give a phone number for the Road Commission, Mr. 
Mulholland (sp?) led the investigation about the boulders on the road in the right-of-way.  He stated that 
he does not own the road but the boulders are on his property.  He said that there have been more 
surveys done on this property due to a proposed development in the 1970s that go back long before 
anyone in this room when they bought their house, so the property lines are very solid on there.  The 
conclusion of the Oakland County Road Commission was that the boulders were on his property and 
Oakland County Road Commission told him that they can not tell him what to do on his property, and 
told him those boulders are clearly on your property.  He showed him the survey irons, the stakes and 
where they were at.  He asked him for the report and if he could get that in writing, he told him no.  He 
told him if anyone has a complaint, please give them his name and number and that issue is closed it 
has been done.  He said he was open to an idea of a S.A.D. for Fernhurst and he is contributing to the 
cost of the project because the Township came to him and told him that they needed some of his land.  
He was hopeful to see Fernhurst get improved.  He thought most of these complaints are from the 
animosity of the Township, the road, and the boulders.  He only put the boulders there to keep people 
from parking on his property after he politely asked them to stop.

Board Member Walker said after he has heard all of the arguments, again and again, he can’t stress 
enough, he recommends that these folks, he thought the committee idea was a great idea, meet with 
them and try to work this out if he can.  He thought that reasonable minds could fix this. They can’t 
make them do it, it is up to them.  He stated that they postponed one of the cases earlier for two weeks, 
he suggested that to him, but can’t make him do it.  Perhaps within those two weeks, he could meet 
with four or five of the representatives of his neighbors, have a cup of coffee, and talk about it and 
maybe they could resolve this.

Vice-Chairman Cook asked to make that a more productive meeting, should that occur?  The items that 
came up were the 20-ft. of road frontage, the berm, and then the boulders on the road, those seem to 
be reoccurring themes.  The fact that he negotiated with the Township and bought a property at a good 
price, that is a kudos to him as a good negotiator.  The township should have done more due diligence 

24



Charter Township of Orion Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes
Regular Meeting – April 12, 2021

23

on the pumphouse, but then to provide proof that he has deeded the property to the Township.  He said 
those are the things that seem to keep coming up.  To keep this meeting on point, he felt that they 
needed to have a clear agenda on what they want to talk about.  He said that he heard what Board 
Member Walker has suggested, but it is ultimately his decision to take his suggestion or not.

Chairman Durham stated the Board Member Walker was the longest-serving member on this Board.  
He added that he has seen more come and go than any of the rest of them.

Mr. Cavanagh stated that he would look forward to two-way positive communication with the neighbors 
moving forward because they all live there and want to enjoy life.  He said he was up for that idea.  He 
added that he told Trustee Dalrymple two years ago, that he could come up with the greatest ideas but 
they need to put together specifics of what they would like to talk about.  Vice-Chairman Cook felt that if 
they agree on an agenda, it would be much more productive.  Vice-Chairman Cook asked Mr. 
Cavanagh if he had shared the timeline with the neighbors?  Mr. Cavanagh replied no he had not. Vice-
Chairman Cook said it was referenced earlier about communicating and sharing information.  Mr. 
Cavanagh said that his door is always open.  Vice-Chairman Cook didn’t think they would come on his 
property because he has no trespassing signs.  That is step number one is how do they get together 
and start the communications?  Building Official Goodloe said that Trustee Dalrymple has been the 
liaison to try to help with the situations between the road and the other issues.  He added that Trustee 
Dalrymple has been working on this for a year and a half or two years, he thought that is where they 
start.  

Chairman Durham thought it would be a good idea to have a third-party liaison involved.  Somebody 
that doesn’t live on his property or any of the neighbor’s properties but understands their concerns, and 
is more able to reach an amicable settlement to make the most people happy.  Because all the folks 
that live on Fernhurst, they all live on the lake, they pay lake taxes, and they deserve to be happy.  
Chairman Durham thought it was doable.

Mr. Hauxwell said a few years ago, Trustee Flood asked a question at a meeting.  He asked if that 20-
ft. deed deeded over to the Road Commission to improve Fernhurst?  He asked Trustee Flood if he 
remembered asking that question, at a previous meeting?  Trustee Flood said he doesn’t have to 
answer that because it doesn’t pertain to this agenda.  Mr. Hauxwell said they just talked about the 
boulders?  Trustee Flood said that he did not ask him a question.  Vice-Chairman Cook said that he 
asked the questions.  Mr. Hauxwell said don’t stonewall him it is a simple question. Mr. Hauxwell said 
that Trustee Flood doesn’t remember asking the question, does he?  Trustee Flood said he wasn’t 
going to answer his question.  Mr. Hauxwell said he asked him a question and he is refusing to answer 
it for the record.  Mr. Hauxwell asked what they wanted him to do, sit back down?  Chairman Durham 
said that he has asked a question and Trustee Flood has declined.  He added that he doesn’t have to 
answer his question because it is not where they are on this part of the agenda.  Mr. Hauxwell 
understood.

Trustee Flood said that he felt that they have discussed this long enough.  He called Robert Rules of 
Order and their bylaws.  He added that once a member of the Board puts a question on the floor that 
stops all discussion and the Board has to make a motion.

Chairman Durham asked if they were voting on the motion that is here yes, or no, or are they giving the 
gentleman the chance to postpone if that is what he wants?   Vice-Chairman Cook said that he believed 
that they were at a point that they were going to let Mr. Cavanagh decide on whether or not he wanted 
to postpone. Mr. Cavanagh asked if the statement was of the three options?  Chairman Durham replied 
that he can demand a vote on what he brought tonight, or he can ask for a postponement to a date 
certain, those are the two options that are open.  Chairman Durham thought that he might want to go to 
the last date certain because if it is his determination to try to reach an agreement with part of the 
people here, he will need some time.  Mr. Cavanagh thought to defuse the situation and bring it down, 

25



Charter Township of Orion Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes
Regular Meeting – April 12, 2021

24

he thought postponing was a good suggestion.  He looked forward to a meeting with a couple of the 
neighbors to talk about it, hear his vision of it, and most importantly hear what they have to say.  He 
added that he was positive about the S.A.D. for Fernhurst Rd., that has been put forth.  

Chairman Durham asked what the furthest date certain they had.  Trustee Flood said June 7, 2021.  

Secretary Brackon said speaking to everyone in the room since Mr. Cavanagh has chosen to postpone, 
and they have voted on that yet, he encouraged them to go into that meeting with open minds. He 
strongly encouraged them because he may be the only one person at that meeting, and there are 10-15 
of them, whether they choose 4 representatives or all 15 of them to not turn it into a 15 on 1 yelling 
match.  For this to be resolved, all sides have to give, and all sides ultimately in the end are not going to 
be happy with everything the way it is.  He said if Mr. Cavanagh was to call for a vote, he didn’t know 
which way it would go but there would be many people, and though he could come up with 15 people 
on his side that are going to be potentially mad, or go the other way with all of them and some other 
neighbors.  He asked them to go into the meeting with open minds knowing that they are going to have 
to give and that they have to live in that vicinity and that they don’t want to live like this for the next 10 to 
50 years.  They have all heard some of the people here, on the issues before that have been here for 
50 years.  If they were having the issues that they all are having he doubted that they would have 
stayed in Orion Township that long.  This is not how, as someone that has been here for 19 years, they 
want Orion Township to look to the rest of the state or the country. He asked them to go in with open 
minds, everyone involved with this and hopefully, it can get resolved calmly and everyone will be happy 
in the end.  There is a way that everyone can ultimately in the end live a happy life with what he is 
doing.

Chairman Durham said the only additional comment, that if he lived on Fernhurst, he would get with the 
other neighbors and pick a core, that tends not to reach for a rock in the first 10-minutes, that can 
recognize if they are being played properly with or not, that may be able to develop something and 
bring it back to the rest.  There are some of them that have expressed opinions in ways that made him 
think that it would be an instant failure.  He thought a smaller group would do it but it was none of his 
business who or if it is.  

Chairman Durham read a letter from Ron Wolf 993 Indianwood.  He was in support of variances.

Moved by Secretary Brackon, seconded by Trustee Flood, that in the matter of ZBA case #AB-2021-05, 
Robert Cavanagh, 893 Indianwood, 09-03-252-010, I move that the petitioner’s request for 2 variances 
from Zoning Ordinance #78 – Zoned R-3, Article XXVII, Section 27.02, be postponed to June 7, 2021, 
Zoning Board of Appeals meeting at the request of the petitioner.   

Roll call vote was as follows:  Walker, yes; Flood, yes; Cook, yes; Brackon, yes; Durham, yes. 
Motion Carried 5-0

6.  PUBLIC COMMENTS
None.

7. COMMUNICATIONS

Memo from Planning & Zoning Coordinator Harrison dated April 5, 2021, Dates which cases can be 
postponed. Information only.

9. COMMITTEE REPORTS
None.

26



Charter Township of Orion Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes
Regular Meeting – April 12, 2021

25

10. MEMBERS’ COMMENTS

Secretary Brackon said he hoped that when this comes up again that they don’t have to sit through 
another 2 hours of public comment.  Not that he was not open to listening to it but hoped that they can 
resolve it in a way that they don’t have to go through that again.

Vice-Chairman Cook thought that there was confusion about saying what they want to do, that is public 
comment for two minutes.

Trustee Flood apologized for getting short but there is a lot of history with this, and that gentleman tried 
to goat him and he won’t play that game.  He added that when the gentleman first came up, he thought 
he was going to talk to Secretary Cook and was surprised he was talking to him.

Chairman Durham said that when the first guy laid it out there, there wasn’t that much left to be said, 
but they had a whole room of people and he wanted people to come up and speak, but it got too far too 
fast.

Vice-Chairman Cook said that he thought that Chairman Durham did a phenomenal job handling the 
meeting.

11. ADJOURNMENT
Moved by Board Member Walker, seconded by Vice-Chairman Cook, to adjourn the meeting at 9:43 
pm.
Motion Carried.

Respectfully submitted,

Debra Walton ____________________________
Planning & Zoning Coordinator Zoning Board of Appeals Approval
Charter Township of Orion

27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



 

 

PACKET DOCUMENTS FROM 

MARCH 22, 2021 ZBA MEETING 

66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



Charter Township of Orion
Planning Division
2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
P: (248) 391-0304 ext. 5001; Fax (248) 391-1454

MEMORANDUM

TO: Zoning Board of Appeals

FROM: Lynn Harrison, Planning & Zoning Coordinator

DATE: April 23, 2021

SUBJECT: Staff Report for AB-2021-12, Meijer Inc., 1025 S. Lapeer Road
_________________________________________________________________________

The petitioner is proposing to purchase and tear down the vacant Kmart building located on 
Lapeer Road and rebuild a 90,000 sq. ft. Meijer Grocery store.  This is a new store format 
which will focus on food offerings including high quality produce, fresh bakery items, and 
deli along with a full range of beer, wine and liquor, and a drive-thru pharmacy.  The said 
store would be detached from the other stores in the strip mall. 

The submitted Site Plan and Special Land Use request for the development went to the 
Planning Commission on April 21, 2021.  The Planning Commission approved the Special 
Land Use and approved the Site Plan conditioned upon the variances requested at this 
meeting.

Note, there are 6 variances requested pertaining to the site plan and 4 that are related to their 
signage.  

Please contact me if you have any questions.

126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



EF-15 EF-17 EF-19
EF-17 EF-28

EF-19 EF-17 EF-17 EF-19
EF-66

EF-20EF-5

EF-17 EF-17
EF-15 EF-19 EF-66 EF-17

T.O. COPING

EL. 139'-0"

T.O. PRECAST

EL. 122'-4"

T.O. PRECAST

EL. 124'-4"

T.O. PRECAST

EL. 126'-4"

T.O. PRECAST

EL. 128'-4"T.O. PRECAST

EL. 124'-4"

T.O. PRECAST

EL. 122'-4"
EF-19 EF-17

EF-17 EF-19

EF-15 EF-15EF-17

EF-17

EF-17
EF-15 EF-17EF-17EF-15EF-17

EF-54

EF-52
EF-54

EF-16

EF-20

EF-25

EF-16EF-16 EF-25EF-28
T.O. PRECAST

EL. 117'-7 1/2"

EF-28 EF-28

EF-20

EF-8 EF-16 EF-8 EF-25 EF-16 EF-17 EF-19

EF-23
EF-66

EF-21

EF-18

EF-17

EF-25

T.O. PRECAST

EL. 120'-0"

T.O. PRECAST

EL. 121'-0"

T.O. PRECAST

EL. 122'-0"

T.O. PRECAST

EL. 122'-4"
EF-17 EF-5

EF-52

EF-54EF-54

EF-18

EF-15

EF-21

EF-15 EF-16EF-28 EF-54EF-54

EF-25

EF-66

EF-5
EF-17

T.O. PRECAST

EL. 122'-4"

T.O. PRECAST

EL. 120'-0"

EF-20

EF-23

EF-23
EF-52

THE COLORS SHOWN IN THIS RENDERING ARE CLOSE APPROXIMATIONS. BECAUSE OF INK VARIATIONS AND DIFFERENCES IN PRINTERS, AN 
EXACT COLOR MATCH CANNOT BE ACHIEVED.
THE VIEWER IS ADVISED TO USE THE RENDERING AS A GUIDE FOR THE ARRANGEMENT OF COLORS ON THE BUILDING, AND TO THEN REFER 

1.5L PROTOTYPE SUPERCENTER
STREET ADDRESS
CITY, STATE   ZIP CODE

ELEVATION - FRONT

ELEVATION - BACK

ELEVATION - RECEIVING

ELEVATION-GARDEN CENTER

RENDERING FINISH LEGEND
CODE FINISH PRODUCT COLOR

EF-5 ENTRANCE AND STOREFRONT FRAMES -- CLEAR ANODIZED ALUMINUM SATIN

EF-8 SECTIONAL OVERHEAD DOORS -- WHITE

EF-15
INSULATED PRECAST CONCRETE WALL - BRICK
IMPRINTED / USE SHERWIN WILLIAMS SW 7641

CRUSHED ICE FOR MORTAR JOINT
SHERWIN WILLIAMS SW 7046 ANONYMOUS SATIN

EF-16 INSULATED PRECAST CONCRETE WALL - SMOOTH FACE
FINISH SHERWIN WILLIAMS SW 7640 FAWN BRINDLE SATIN

EF-17
INSULATED PRECAST CONCRETE WALL - BRICK
IMPRINTED / USE SHERWIN WILLIAMS SW 7641

CRUSHED ICE FOR MORTAR JOINT
SHERWIN WILLIAMS SW 7640 FAWN BRINDLE SATIN

EF-18 INSULATED PRECAST CONCRETE WALL - SMOOTH FACE
FINISH SHERWIN WILLIAMS SW 7641 COLONNADE GRAY SATIN

EF-19
INSULATED PRECAST CONCRETE WALL - BRICK
IMPRINTED / USE SHERWIN WILLIAMS SW 7641

CRUSHED ICE FOR MORTAR JOINT
SHERWIN WILLIAMS SW 7641 COLONNADE GRAY SATIN

EF-20 CANOPY FASCIA PANEL AND SOFFIT PAC-CLAD INTERSTATE BLUE

EF-21 SHEET METAL FLASHING AND TRIM - EDGE FLASHING
AT CANOPY PAC-CLAD INTERSTATE BLUE

EF-22 SHEET METAL FLASHING AND TRIM - EDGE FLASHING
AT PARAPET PAC-CLAD INTERSTATE BLUE

EF-23 FIELD PAINTED STEEL - STEEL FRAMING AND
COLUMNS, HANGER ASSEMBLIES, AND METAL DECK SHERWIN WILLIAMS SW 6510 LOYAL BLUE

EF-24 FIELD PAINTED STEEL - STEEL FRAMING AND
COLUMNS, GUARDRAIL, AND JIB HOIST SHERWIN WILLIAMS SW 7640 FAWN BRINDLE

EF-25 FIELD PAINTED STEEL - HOLLOW METAL DOORS &
FRAMES SHERWIN WILLIAMS SW 7640 FAWN BRINDLE SATIN

EF-26 FIELD PAINTED STEEL - HOLLOW METAL DOORS &
FRAMES SHERWIN WILLIAMS SW 7641 COLONNADE GRAY SATIN

EF-28 METAL PANELS PAC-CLAD GRANITE

EF-29 SHEET METAL FLASHING AND TRIM PAC-CLAD GRANITE

EF-52 GALVANIZED STEEL FINISH -- GALVANIZED

EF-54 CHAIN LINK FENCE -- --

EF-60 ALUMINUM CLAD SPANDREL PANELS -- CLEAR ANODIZED

EF-66 UTILITY THIN BRICK DUTCH GRAY VELOUR SW 7640 FAWN BRINDLE SATIN

MEIJER ORI - FOOD FORWARD
1025 S. LAPEER RD.
ORION TWP., MI

ELEVATION - FRONT

ELEVATION - BACK

ELEVATION - RECEIVING

ELEVATION - SIDE

RENDERING FINISH LEGEND

CODE FINISH PRODUCT COLOR

EF-5 ENTRANCE AND STOREFRONT FRAMES TUBELITE STOREFRONT DARK BRONZE

EF-8 SECTIONAL OVERHEAD DOORS -- WHITE

EF-15
INSULATED PRECAST CONCRETE WALL 

- VERTICAL LINEAR /
VERTICAL STANDING SEAMS

RECKLI FORMLINER
2/75 KOCHER SW 7506 LOGGIA

EF-16 INSULATED PRECAST CONCRETE WALL AP FORMLINER
EIFS #410 SW 7026 GRIFFIN

EF-19 INSULATED PRECAST CONCRETE WALL 
- BRICK IMPRINTED

AP FORMLINER
MODULAR BRICK VELOUR 

#101A
SW 7042 SHOJI WHITE

EF-20 CANOPY FASCIA PANEL AND SOFFIT PAC-CLAD DARK BRONZE

EF-21 SHEET METAL FLASHING AND TRIM - EDGE 
FLASHING AT CANOPY PAC-CLAD DARK BRONZE

EF-22 SHEET METAL FLASHING AND TRIM - EDGE 
FLASHING AT PARAPET PAC-CLAD DARK BRONZE

EF-23
FIELD PAINTED STEEL - STEEL FRAMING AND 
COLUMNS, HANGER ASSEMBLIES, AND METAL 

DECK
SHERWIN WILLIAMS DARK BRONZE

EF-25 FIELD PAINTED STEEL - HOLLOW METAL DOORS 
& FRAMES SHERWIN WILLIAMS SW 7042 SHOJI WHITE

EF-26 FIELD PAINTED STEEL - HOLLOW METAL DOORS 
& FRAMES SHERWIN WILLIAMS SW 7026 GRIFFIN

EF-52 GALVANIZED STEEL FINISH -- DARK BRONZE

EF-54 CHAIN LINK FENCE -- --

EF-55 PLANTER -- CORTEN STEEL

EF-5 EF-19EF-20EF-21

EF-55

EF-5EF-55 EF-15 EF-15 EF-21

EF-15

EF-16

EF-16

EF-15EF-19

EF-15

EF-16 EF-22

EF-22

EF-22

EF-19

EF-19EF-21

EF-5

EF-23

EF-54

EF-21

EF-23

EF-20

EF-16 EF-22EF-22EF-22 EF-23EF-21 EF-19

EF-8

EF-21

EF-25

EF-26

EF-20 EF-5

March 24, 2021

160



S

T

O

P

S

T

O

P

M

A

I

N

 

S

T

O

R

E

8

9

,

9

6

2

 

S

Q

.

 

F

T

.

 

 

 

F

F

 

E

L

E

V

.

 

=

 

1

0

0

1

.

5

0

Reviewer

Designer

Drawn By

Hard copy is intended to be

24"x36" when plotted.  Scale(s)

indicated and graphic quality may

not be accurate for any other size.

Manager

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

© C o p y r i g h t   2 0 21

A l l  R i g h t s  R e s e r v e d

D

C

B

A

54321

FISHBECK PROJ. NO. 201289

-

S
t
o
r
e
 
N

o
.
 
O

R
I

1
0

2
5

 
S

.
L

a
p

e
e

r
 
R

d

O
r
i
o

n
,
 
 
M

I
 
4

8
3

6
0

on the net at:  www.missdig.org
1-800-482-7171

3 full working days before  you  dig:

Michigan's
One-Call

Utility
Notification
Organization

Call  MISS DIG

JTV

3/24/2021 SLU / 50% SPA

ORION TOWNSHIP

Tammy Girling

Planning & Zoning Director

Orion Township

2525 Joslyn Rd

Lake Orion, MI 48360

Phone: 248.391.0304 (ext. 5000)

TOWNSHIP ENGINEER

James C. Stevens, PE

OHM Advisors

34000 Plymouth Road

Livonia, MI 48150

Phone:  734.522.6711

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

C. William Ireland

Director of Public Works

2525 Joslyn Rd

Lake Orion, MI 48360

Phone: 248.391.0304 (ext.118)

PUBLIC WATER

William Basigkow

Water and Sewer Superintendent

Department of Public Services

2525 Joslyn Rd

Lake Orion, MI 48360

Phone:  248.391.0304 (ext. 8508)

PUBLIC SEWER

William Basigkow

Water and Sewer Superintendent

Department of Public Services

2525 Joslyn Rd

Lake Orion, MI 48360

Phone:  248.391.0304 (ext. 8508)

MDOT

Joe Rios

Statewide Construction

Permit Coordinator

Phone:  517.241.2103

RCOC

Gary Piotrowicz

County Highway Engineer

31001 Lahser Road

Beverly Hills, MI 48025

Phone:  877.858.4804

NATURAL GAS

Consumers Energy

Debra Butterfield

Debra.butterfield@cmsenergy.com

4141 East Wilder Road

Bay City, MI 48706

ELECTRIC

DTE Energy

Jake Hermann

GIS Analyst

Phone:  313.235.5820

TELEPHONE

AT&T

John Sickney

Phone:  616.246.7317

DATA

Comcast

Camilla Dean

Sigma Technologies, Ltd.

27096 Oakmead Drive

Perrysburg, OH 43551

Phone:  419.874.9262 Ext. (6012)

SITE

LOCATION

C-001

JAB

KK3

~~~

ALL CONTRACTORS SHALL NOTIFY UTILITY COMPANIES AND GOVERNMENT AGENCIES IN WRITING OF
THE INTENT TO EXCAVATE NO LESS THAN 72 HOURS PRIOR TO SUCH EXCAVATION (EXCLUSIVE OF
SATURDAYS, SUNDAYS, AND HOLIDAYS) AND CALL LOCAL UTILITY LOCATING AGENCY AT 1-248-693-8391.

EXISTING UTILITY LOCATIONS SHOWN SHALL BE VERIFIED BY CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.
LOCATIONS OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES ON THESE DRAWINGS ARE APPROXIMATE ONLY AND BASED
ON ACTUAL FIELD LOCATIONS OF VISIBLE STRUCTURES AND PLAN COMPUTATIONS.

EXISTING TOPOGRAPHY IS BASED ON AN ACTUAL FIELD SURVEY PERFORMED BY FISHBECK IN
JANUARY 2021.

REFER TO SOIL BORING LOGS PREPARED BY SME IN REPORT DATED (DRAFT) FEBRUARY 25, 2021.

UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE

UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC

GAS MAIN

TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

X X
UNDERDRAIN

METER

CURB STOP & BOX

STANDARD FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY

PLUG

VALVE & BOX

WATER MAIN

CATCH BASIN

STORM SEWER & MANHOLE

STANDARD SEWER CLEANOUT

RISER & LEAD

WYE & LEAD

SANITARY SEWER & MANHOLE

(7.56)  ACRES  LOCATED  IN

CONCRETE SLAB

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT

LIGHT DUTY ASPHALT

GENERAL NOTES LOCAL UTILITY LOCATING AGENCY

SURVEY

GEOTECHNICAL

SYMBOL LEGEND AGENCIES VICINITY MAP

SHEET KEYNOTE INSTRUCTIONS

SHEET KEYNOTES ARE NOTED WITHIN THE GRAPHIC AREA OF THE DRAWING. THESE ARE

REPRESENTED BY A NUMBER SURROUNDED BY A HEXAGON, WITH OR WITHOUT A LEADER. A

LEGEND ON THE RIGHT SIDE OF THE PAGE LISTS THE NOTES IN NUMERICAL ORDER.

EXAMPLE:

1. CONDUCT SITE CLEARING OPERATIONS TO ENSURE MINIMUM INTERFERENCE WITH ROADS, STREETS, WALKS, AND OTHER
ADJACENT OCCUPIED OR USED FACILITIES. DO NOT CLOSE OR OBSTRUCT STREETS, WALKS, OR OTHER OCCUPIED OR USED
FACILITIES WITHOUT PERMISSION FROM AUTHORITIES HAVING JURISDICTION. STREETS AND ROADWAYS SHALL BE
THOROUGHLY CLEANED AND/OR SWEPT ON A DAILY BASIS OR MORE FREQUENTLY AS REQUIRED BY THE GOVERNING
AUTHORITY. RESTORE DAMAGED IMPROVEMENTS TO ORIGINAL CONDITION AS ACCEPTABLE TO PARTIES HAVING JURISDICTION.

2. PROVIDE DUST CONTROL MEASURES IN ACCORDANCE WITH LOCAL AUTHORITIES.

3. ALL STREET SURFACES, DRIVEWAYS, CULVERTS, ROADSIDE DRAINAGE DITCHES AND OTHER STRUCTURES THAT ARE DISTURBED
OR DAMAGED IN ANY MANNER AS A RESULT OF CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE REPLACED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS.

4. UNLESS SPECIFIED OTHERWISE, ALL MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH MEIJER STANDARD
SPECIFICATIONS, THE STATE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY STANDARDS, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
SPECIFICATIONS AND/OR THE APPROPRIATE LOCAL AUTHORITIES.

5. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL PERMITS, PERMIT FEES, LICENSES, AND LICENSE FEES, UNLESS NOTED
OTHERWISE.

6. RELOCATION OF ANY UTILITIES SHALL BE PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THE APPROPRIATE UTILITY
COMPANY AND/OR REGULATORY AGENCY. OBTAIN WRITTEN APPROVAL FROM THE ENGINEER BEFORE ANY UTILITY
RELOCATION.

7. ELECTRONIC FILES IN DWG FORMAT WILL BE SUPPLIED TO THE CONSTRUCTION MANAGER FOR LAYOUT AND GRADING.

8. ELECTRONIC FILE USE TERMS AND CONDITIONS:
8.A. RECIPIENT ACKNOWLEDGES THAT ANY USE OF THE TRANSFERRED DATA IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY AND NOT

GUARANTEED OR WARRANTED BY MEIJER OR ITS CONSULTANTS.  USE OF TRANSFERRED DATA BY THE RECIPIENT
SHALL BE AT RECIPIENT'S SOLE RISK.  RECIPIENT ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE AUTOMATED CONVERSION OF
INFORMATION AND DATA FROM THE ORIGINAL FORMAT AND SYSTEM TO AN ALTERNATE FORMAT OR SYSTEM CAN
NOT BE ACCOMPLISHED WITHOUT THE INTRODUCTION OF INEXACTITUDES, ANOMALIES, AND ERRORS. RECIPIENT
FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE ELECTRONIC DATA MAY NOT BE FULLY COMPATIBLE WITH RECIPIENT'S
COMPUTER SYSTEM AND NEITHER MEIJER NOR ITS CONSULTANTS MAKE NO REPRESENTATIONS REGARDING SUCH
COMPATIBILITY.

8.B. ACCORDINGLY, WITH RESPECT TO THE CONVERSION AND USE OF SUCH ELECTRONIC DATA.  RECIPIENT AGREES TO
ASSUME ALL RISKS ASSOCIATED THEREWITH, AND TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, TO HOLD
HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFY MEIJER AND THEIR CONSULTANTS FROM AND AGAINST ALL CLAIMS, LIABILITIES,
LOSSES, DAMAGES, AND COSTS, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ATTORNEY'S FEES AND COSTS, WHETHER OR NOT
SUIT HAS BEEN FILED, ARISING OUT OF, OR IN ANY WAY CONNECTED WITH THE USE, MODIFICATION,
MISINTERPRETATION, MISUSE, OR REUSE BY RECIPIENT OR OTHERS OF THE ELECTRONIC DATA WHICH IS PROVIDED
BY MEIJER OR ITS CONSULTANTS UNDER THESE TERMS AND CONDITIONS.

8.C. THESE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SHALL BE BINDING UPON THE SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS OF THE PARTIES.

UPON ACCEPTANCE OF THE ELECTRONIC DATA TRANSMISSION, RECIPENT HEREBY AGREES TO THE FOREGOING TERMS
AND CONDITIONS.  IF RECIPIENT DOES NOT AGREE TO THE FOREGOING TERMS AND CONDITIONS, MEIJER AND ITS
CONSULTANTS DO NOT AUTHORIZE THE USE OF THE TRANSMITTED DATA, AND RECIPIENT SHALL DESTROY THE
TRANSMITTED DATA AND NOTIFY MEIJER OR ITS CONSULTANTS OF THE SAME BY PROVIDING WRITTEN NOTICE WITHIN
ONE DAY OF TRANSMISSION.  FAILURE TO PROVIDE SUCH NOTICE SHALL ACT AS WAIVER AND RECIPIENT SHALL BE BOUND
TO THE FOREGOING TERMS AND CONDITIONS.

A101

1

SIM

REVISION CLOUD

ENLARGED PLAN OR DETAIL

ELEVATION TAGS

WALL SECTION MARK

DATUM MARK

CONTROL POINT

BREAK MARK

MATCH LINE

A1

A1

A-101

BUILDING SECTION MARK

A1

A-101

A1

A-101

A1

A2A-101E2

B4

CP1

T.O. MASONRY

12'-0"

A AREA
ALT ALTERNATE
AMP AMPERE
ARCH ARCHITECTURAL
ASTM AMERICAN SOCIETY FOR TESTING

& MATERIALS
B/C BACK OF CURB
BIT BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT
BM BENCH MARK
BP BID PACKAGE
C CONDUIT
CAL CALIPER
CB CATCH BASIN
CFH CUBIC FEET PER HOUR
C.I. CURB ISLAND
CIR CIRCUIT
CONC CONCRETE
DIA DIAMETER
(E) EAST
E.I.F.S. EXTERIOR INSULATION FINISHING

SYSTEM
EL. ELEV ELEVATION
EQ EQUIVALENT
ES END SECTION
ETC ETCETRA
FH FIRE HYDRANT
FF FINISHED FLOOR
FT² FOOT SQUARE
GND, GRD GROUND
GP GUTTER PAN
GPD GALLONS PER DAY
GPM GALLONS PER MINUTE
GV&BOX GATE VALVE AND BOX
HC HIGH CAPACITY
HD HEAVY DUTY
HT HEIGHT
IE INVERT ELEVATION
KVA KILAVOLT AMPERE
LBS POUNDS
LD LIGHT DUTY
LED LIGHT EMITTING DIODE
LF LINEAR FEET
LG LARGE
MANUF MANUFACTURE
MAT'L MATERIAL
MAX MAXIMUM
MECH MECHANICAL
MIN MINIMUM
MH MANHOLE
(N) NORTH
OC ON CENTER
OH OVERHEAD

OSHA OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY &
HEALTH ADMINISTRATON

PC POINT OF CURVATURE
PE POLYETHYLENE
PH PHASE
PSI POUNDS PER SQUARE INCH
PT POINT OF TANGENCY
PVC POLYVINYL CHLORIDE
PVMT PAVEMENT
R RADIUS
RCP REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE
RE; REFERENCE
REQ'D REQUIRED
ROW RIGHT-OF-WAY
RW RETAINING WALL
(S) SOUTH
SAN SANITARY SEWER
SB SOIL BORING
SF, SQFT SQUARE FEET
SQ SQUARE
STM STORM SEWER
STRUC STRUCTURE
TC TOP OF CURB
TEL TELEPHONE
TP TOP OF PAVEMENT
TRNF TRANSFORMER
TS TOP OF SLAB
TW TOP OF WALL
TYP TYPICAL
UC UTILITY CROSSING
UD UNDER DRAIN
W WIRE
(W) WEST
W/ WITH
WC WATER COLUMN
WTR WATER
WWF WELDED WIRE FABRIC

ABBREVIATIONS

1. ALIGN NEW CONSTRUCTION WITH THE

FACE OF EXISTING CONSTRUCTION.

NTS
VICINITY MAPA5

CIVIL SITE ADAPTATION

MAIN STORE

MEIJER STORE ORI

1025 SOUTH LAPEER ROAD, LAKE ORION TOWNSHIP,

OAKLAND COUNTY, MI 48362

ISSUE DESCRIPTION: SPECIAL LAND USE AND

SITE PLAN APPLICATION

ISSUE DATE: 03/24/2021

PROJECT NUMBER: 201289

CIVIL
3/24/2021 C-001 COVER
3/24/2021 C-100 EXISTING CONDITIONS

- C-102 DEMOLITION PLAN
3/24/2021 C-200 SITE LAYOUT / PAVEMENT PLAN

- C-201 ENLARGED SITE LAYOUT / PAVEMENT PLAN
3/24/2021 C-300 GRADING PLAN

- C-301 ENLARGED GRADING PLAN
3/24/2021 C-310 STORM WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN
3/24/2021 C-311 STORM WATER PLAN
3/24/2021 C-400 UTILITY PLAN

- C-401 ENLARGED UTILITY PLAN
3/24/2021 C-500 STRIPING / SIGNAGE PLAN
3/24/2021 C-501 SIGN DETAILS
3/24/2021 C-600 PRELIMINARY LANDSCAPE PLAN
3/24/2021 C-700 DETAILS
3/24/2021 C-701 DETAILS

- C-702 DETAILS
3/24/2021 C-800 SITE LIGHTING PHOTOMETRIC PLAN
3/24/2021 C-801 SITE LIGHTING DETAILS

TURN DOWN CONCRETE SLAB

SITE LIGHT POLES

SIGN

GRAVEL SURFACE

PAVED SURFACE

EXISTING CURB & GUTTER

PROPOSED CURB & GUTTER

LOT LINE  (AS PLATTED)

R.O.W. LINE

SECTION LINE

CENTER OF DITCH

BENCH MARK

SECTION CORNER

FENCE

EASEMENT LINE

NEW MINOR

CONTOUR

NEW MAJOR

CONTOUR

EXISTING MINOR

CONTOUR

EXISTING MAJOR

CONTOUR

PROPOSED PAVEMENT/GUTTER ELEVATION

PROPOSED PAVEMENT MARKING (PAINTING)

PROPOSED BARRIER FREE PARKING

1" = 200'
OVERALL SITE PLANB5

161



Reviewer

Designer

Drawn By

Hard copy is intended to be

24"x36" when plotted.  Scale(s)

indicated and graphic quality may

not be accurate for any other size.

Manager

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

© C o p y r i g h t   2 0 21

A l l  R i g h t s  R e s e r v e d

D

C

B

A

54321

FISHBECK PROJ. NO. 201289

-

S
t
o
r
e
 
N

o
.
 
O

R
I

1
0

2
5

 
S

.
L

a
p

e
e

r
 
R

d

O
r
i
o

n
,
 
 
M

I
 
4

8
3

6
0

on the net at:  www.missdig.org
1-800-482-7171

3 full working days before  you  dig:

Michigan's
One-Call

Utility
Notification
Organization

Call  MISS DIG

JTV

3/24/2021 SLU / 50% SPA

C-100

JAB

KK3

~~~

BENCHMARKS

A1

EXISTING CONDITIONS

SYMBOL LEGEND

E
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
C

o
n
d
i
t
i
o
n
s

162



S
T
O
P

S
T
O
P

MAIN STORE

89,962 SQ. FT.   FF ELEV. = 1001.50

Reviewer

Designer

Drawn By

Hard copy is intended to be

24"x36" when plotted.  Scale(s)

indicated and graphic quality may

not be accurate for any other size.

Manager

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

© C o p y r i g h t   2 0 21

A l l  R i g h t s  R e s e r v e d

D

C

B

A

54321

FISHBECK PROJ. NO. 201289

-

S
t
o
r
e
 
N

o
.
 
O

R
I

1
0

2
5

 
S

.
L

a
p

e
e

r
 
R

d

O
r
i
o

n
,
 
 
M

I
 
4

8
3

6
0

on the net at:  www.missdig.org
1-800-482-7171

3 full working days before  you  dig:

Michigan's
One-Call

Utility
Notification
Organization

Call  MISS DIG

JTV

3/24/2021 SLU / 50% SPA

C-200

JAB

KK3

~~~

S
i
t
e
 
L
a
y
o
u
t
 
/
 
P

a
v
e
m

e
n
t
 
P

l
a
n

SYMBOL LEGEND

KEY NOTES

NOTES

SITE ZONING SUMMARY

PARKING SUMMARY

A1

SITE LAYOUT / PAVEMENT PLAN

T
R

U
C

K
 
D

O
C

K
S

RECEIVING

163



MAIN STORE

89,962 SQ. FT.   FF ELEV. = 1001.50

Reviewer

Designer

Drawn By

Hard copy is intended to be

24"x36" when plotted.  Scale(s)

indicated and graphic quality may

not be accurate for any other size.

Manager

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

© C o p y r i g h t   2 0 21

A l l  R i g h t s  R e s e r v e d

D

C

B

A

54321

FISHBECK PROJ. NO. 201289

-

S
t
o
r
e
 
N

o
.
 
O

R
I

1
0

2
5

 
S

.
L

a
p

e
e

r
 
R

d

O
r
i
o

n
,
 
 
M

I
 
4

8
3

6
0

on the net at:  www.missdig.org
1-800-482-7171

3 full working days before  you  dig:

Michigan's
One-Call

Utility
Notification
Organization

Call  MISS DIG

JTV

3/24/2021 SLU / 50% SPA

C-300

JAB

KK3

~~~

G
r
a
d
i
n
g
 
P

l
a
n

A1

GRADING PLAN

SYMBOL LEGEND

NOTES

BENCHMARKSBENCHMARKS

164



MAIN STORE

89,962 SQ. FT.   FF ELEV. = 1001.50

Reviewer

Designer

Drawn By

Hard copy is intended to be

24"x36" when plotted.  Scale(s)

indicated and graphic quality may

not be accurate for any other size.

Manager

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

© C o p y r i g h t   2 0 21

A l l  R i g h t s  R e s e r v e d

D

C

B

A

54321

FISHBECK PROJ. NO. 201289

-

S
t
o
r
e
 
N

o
.
 
O

R
I

1
0

2
5

 
S

.
L

a
p

e
e

r
 
R

d

O
r
i
o

n
,
 
 
M

I
 
4

8
3

6
0

on the net at:  www.missdig.org
1-800-482-7171

3 full working days before  you  dig:

Michigan's
One-Call

Utility
Notification
Organization

Call  MISS DIG

JTV

3/24/2021 SLU / 50% SPA

C-310

JAB

KK3

~~~

S
t
o
r
m

w
a
t
e
r
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
 
P

l
a
n

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

A1

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PLAN

SYMBOL LEGEND

STORMWATER UTILITY TABLE

GENERAL NOTES

STORM WATER NOTES

165



MAIN STORE

89,962 SQ. FT.   FF ELEV. = 1001.50

Reviewer

Designer

Drawn By

Hard copy is intended to be

24"x36" when plotted.  Scale(s)

indicated and graphic quality may

not be accurate for any other size.

Manager

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

© C o p y r i g h t   2 0 21

A l l  R i g h t s  R e s e r v e d

D

C

B

A

54321

FISHBECK PROJ. NO. 201289

-

S
t
o
r
e
 
N

o
.
 
O

R
I

1
0

2
5

 
S

.
L

a
p

e
e

r
 
R

d

O
r
i
o

n
,
 
 
M

I
 
4

8
3

6
0

on the net at:  www.missdig.org
1-800-482-7171

3 full working days before  you  dig:

Michigan's
One-Call

Utility
Notification
Organization

Call  MISS DIG

JTV

3/24/2021 SLU / 50% SPA

C-400

JAB

KK3

~~~

U
t
i
l
i
t
y
 
P

l
a
n

A1

UTILITY PLAN

BENCHMARKSBENCHMARKS

SYMBOL LEGEND

GENERAL UTILITY NOTES

SANITARY SEWER NOTES

GAS MAIN NOTES

WATER MAIN NOTES

166



S
T

O
P

S
T

O
P

MAIN STORE

89,962 SQ. FT.   FF ELEV. = 1001.50

Reviewer

Designer

Drawn By

Hard copy is intended to be

24"x36" when plotted.  Scale(s)

indicated and graphic quality may

not be accurate for any other size.

Manager

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

© C o p y r i g h t   2 0 21

A l l  R i g h t s  R e s e r v e d

D

C

B

A

54321

FISHBECK PROJ. NO. 201289

-

S
t
o
r
e
 
N

o
.
 
O

R
I

1
0

2
5

 
S

.
L

a
p

e
e

r
 
R

d

O
r
i
o

n
,
 
 
M

I
 
4

8
3

6
0

on the net at:  www.missdig.org
1-800-482-7171

3 full working days before  you  dig:

Michigan's
One-Call

Utility
Notification
Organization

Call  MISS DIG

JTV

3/24/2021 SLU / 50% SPA

C-500

JAB

KK3

~~~

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
C

o
n
t
r
o
l
 
S

i
g
n
a
g
e
 
/
 
S

t
r
i
p
i
n
g
 
P

l
a
n

A1

TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNAGE / STRIPING PLAN

T
R

U
C

K
 
D

O
C

K

R
E

C
E

I
V

I
N

G

GRADE LEVEL

RECEIVING

PAVEMENT STRIPING NOTES

BUILDING AND SITE SIGNAGE NOTES

COMPACTOR STRIPING ENLARGEMENT

D6

167



Reviewer

Designer

Drawn By

Hard copy is intended to be

24"x36" when plotted.  Scale(s)

indicated and graphic quality may

not be accurate for any other size.

Manager

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

© C o p y r i g h t   2 0 21

A l l  R i g h t s  R e s e r v e d

D

C

B

A

54321

FISHBECK PROJ. NO. 201289

-

S
t
o
r
e
 
N

o
.
 
O

R
I

1
0

2
5

 
S

.
L

a
p

e
e

r
 
R

d

O
r
i
o

n
,
 
 
M

I
 
4

8
3

6
0

on the net at:  www.missdig.org
1-800-482-7171

3 full working days before  you  dig:

Michigan's
One-Call

Utility
Notification
Organization

Call  MISS DIG

JTV

3/24/2021 SLU / 50% SPA

C-501

JAB

KK3

~~~

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
C

o
n
t
r
o
l
 
S

i
g
n
a
g
e
 
/
 
S

t
r
i
p
i
n
g
 
P

l
a
n

MEIJER WALL SIGN

A4

STORE SIGNAGE

DETAIL     NO.      DESCRIPTION           SQUARE FEET

A4

A5

B4

B5

B4

B4

C5

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

Meijer Wall Sign

Pick-up Wall Sign

Monument Sign

Bottle Return Wall Sign

Rx Logo Wayfinding Sign

Pickup Logo Wayfinding Sign

Pharmacy Drive-Up Wall Sign

________________________________

Total

300.0

34.8

37.5

6.7

16.0

16.0

57.3

______

468.3

GENERAL NOTES

PICKUP WALL SIGN

A5

PHARMACY DRIVE-UP WALL SIGN

C5

BOTTLE RETURN WALL SIGN

B5

MONUMENT SIGN

B4

RED LETTERS

WHITE BACKGROUND

BLUE CABINET

CONCRETE BASE WITH

PLAIN CONCRETE FINISH

DOUBLE FACED INTERNALLY

ILLUMINATED LOGO CABINET

ENTIRE PYLON STRUCTURE ABOVE GRADE,

EXCEPTCONCRETE BASE INCLUDING

ELECTRIC BOXES AND EXPOSED CONDUIT

IS TO BE PAINTED MAP TO MATCH

PMS 286 (BLUE)

LOGO WAYFINDING SIGNS

C4

168



S
T
O
P

S
T
O
P

MAIN STORE

89,962 SQ. FT.   FF ELEV. = 1001.50

Reviewer

Designer

Drawn By

Hard copy is intended to be

24"x36" when plotted.  Scale(s)

indicated and graphic quality may

not be accurate for any other size.

Manager

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

© C o p y r i g h t   2 0 21

A l l  R i g h t s  R e s e r v e d

D

C

B

A

54321

FISHBECK PROJ. NO. 201289

-

S
t
o
r
e
 
N

o
.
 
O

R
I

1
0

2
5

 
S

.
L

a
p

e
e

r
 
R

d

O
r
i
o

n
,
 
 
M

I
 
4

8
3

6
0

on the net at:  www.missdig.org
1-800-482-7171

3 full working days before  you  dig:

Michigan's
One-Call

Utility
Notification
Organization

Call  MISS DIG

JTV

3/24/2021 SLU / 50% SPA

C-600

JK

JK

~~~

P
r
e
l
i
m

i
n
a
r
y
 
L
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 
P

l
a
n

LANDSCAPE NOTES

A1

LANDSCAPE PLAN

SYMBOL LEGEND

SYMBOL DESCRIPTION

LANDSCAPE MATERIAL NOTE

SHADE TREE
(MAPLE, OAK, GINKO)

ORNAMENTAL TREE
(CRABAPPLE, REDBUD, DOGWOOD)

EVERGREEN TREE
(PINE, SPRUCE, FIR)

ORNAMENTAL TREE - SPECIAL
(MARILEE CRABAPPLE)

ORNAMENTAL SHRUB - LARGE

SHRUB BED - LOW

TREE REMOVAL
(STUNTED GROWTH, HEALTH ISSUES,
SIGHT LINE ISSUES, OVERHEAD WIRES)

EXISTING SHADE TREE

169



Reviewer

Designer

Drawn By

Hard copy is intended to be

24"x36" when plotted.  Scale(s)

indicated and graphic quality may

not be accurate for any other size.

Manager

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

© C o p y r i g h t   2 0 21

A l l  R i g h t s  R e s e r v e d

D

C

B

A

54321

FISHBECK PROJ. NO. 201289

-

S
t
o
r
e
 
N

o
.
 
O

R
I

1
0

2
5

 
S

.
L

a
p

e
e

r
 
R

d

O
r
i
o

n
,
 
 
M

I
 
4

8
3

6
0

on the net at:  www.missdig.org
1-800-482-7171

3 full working days before  you  dig:

Michigan's
One-Call

Utility
Notification
Organization

Call  MISS DIG

JTV

3/24/2021 SLU / 50% SPA

C-700

JAB

KK3

~~~

D
e
t
a
i
l
s

STORM SEWER CATCH BASIN

A4

FIRE HYDRANT AND WATER VALVE PLACEMENT

C4

TYP. CLEANOUT DETAIL

B5

FRAME AND GRATE

A2

TYP. DOMESTIC WATER RISER

A1

PIPE TRENCH TYP.

B3

PERFORATED UNDERDRAIN

B2

FIRE RISER DETAIL

B1

24" DIA. CATCH BASIN

C3

FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY

C1

170



Reviewer

Designer

Drawn By

Hard copy is intended to be

24"x36" when plotted.  Scale(s)

indicated and graphic quality may

not be accurate for any other size.

Manager

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

© C o p y r i g h t   2 0 21

A l l  R i g h t s  R e s e r v e d

D

C

B

A

54321

FISHBECK PROJ. NO. 201289

-

S
t
o
r
e
 
N

o
.
 
O

R
I

1
0

2
5

 
S

.
L

a
p

e
e

r
 
R

d

O
r
i
o

n
,
 
 
M

I
 
4

8
3

6
0

on the net at:  www.missdig.org
1-800-482-7171

3 full working days before  you  dig:

Michigan's
One-Call

Utility
Notification
Organization

Call  MISS DIG

JTV

3/24/2021 SLU / 50% SPA

C-701

JAB

KK3

~~~

D
e
t
a
i
l
s

UNDERDRAIN AT LOADING DOCK

A4

MDOT B2 CURB AND GUTTER

C4

TYP. BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT AT CB AND MH

A2

CONCRETE PAVEMENT EDGE

A1

CURB AND GUTTER DETAIL

B3

BOLLARD DETAIL

B1

CURB AND GUTTER DETAIL

C1

BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT EDGE DETAILS

A3

LIGHT DUTY/HEAVY DUTY PAVEMENT SECTION

C2

CONCRETE CURBED WALK

B4

MDOT F4 CURB AND GUTTER

C5

SIDEWALK DETAIL

D4

SIDEWALK RAMP DETAIL

D1

*

CURB TRANSITION DETAIL

D4

171



S
T
O
P

S
T
O
P

MAIN STORE

89,962 SQ. FT.   FF ELEV. = 1001.50

0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.3 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.7 1.1 1.6 1.7 1.2 0.8 0.5

0.0 0.1 0.2 0.5 0.7 0.8 0.6 0.8 1.2 1.4 1.4 1.1 0.9 1.0 1.0 0.9 1.2 1.4 1.4 1.2 0.9 0.9 1.0 0.9 1.1 1.4 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.2 0.8 0.6 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.7 1.1 1.7 2.8 3.0 1.9 1.2 0.8

0.0 0.0 0.1 0.5 0.7 0.7 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.7 2.5 2.2 1.3 0.9 1.0 1.0 0.9 1.5 2.4 2.4 1.6 1.0 0.9 1.0 0.9 1.2 2.1 2.6 2.1 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.4 2.2 2.5 1.8 1.0 0.7 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.2 0.8 0.6 0.7 1.0 1.3 2.1 2.1 1.5 1.0 0.8

0.0 0.0 0.1 0.3 0.8 1.2 0.8 2.3 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.0 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.6 1.2 1.2 3.6 2.5 1.7 1.3 1.0 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6

0.0 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.7 1.1 3.8 2.5 1.8 1.3 1.0 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5

0.0 0.0 0.1 0.3 0.6 0.7 0.8 3.4 2.5 1.9 1.5 1.2 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4

0.0 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.7 0.9 0.5 2.3 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.4 0.8 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.7 0.8 0.7 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.1 1.5 0.9 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.4 0.7 0.8 1.4 2.8 2.6 2.4 2.2 1.7 1.2 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.5

0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.6 0.9 1.3 2.5 4.1 3.1 2.5 2.2 2.0 1.4 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.5 1.1 1.6 1.9 3.2 4.5 3.4 2.9 2.7 2.5 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.3 0.7 1.5 2.1 2.6 3.3 4.2 3.7 3.4 3.4 3.2 2.9 2.5 2.2 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.5 1.7

0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.3 0.8 1.4 1.9 2.8 3.8 3.7 4.0 3.9 3.6 3.2 2.8 2.5 2.1 1.8 1.7 1.9 2.2

0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.8 1.4 1.9 2.8 3.4 3.4 4.1 4.8 4.7 4.5 3.6 3.0 2.5 2.1 2.0 2.3 2.6 3.1 3.9 4.5 4.5 4.0 3.1 2.5 1.9 1.2 0.8 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.4 1.0 1.6 2.0 2.6 3.6 3.0 4.5 5.3 5.3 5.2 4.5 3.4 2.9 2.4 2.2 2.5 3.0 3.6 4.8 5.1 5.1 4.9 3.8 2.8 2.1 1.4 0.8 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.5 1.1 2.0 2.5 2.7 3.0 3.1 4.5 5.3 5.7 5.4 4.7 3.5 3.0 2.4 2.2 2.6 3.1 3.9 5.0 5.5 5.5 5.1 4.1 2.9 2.2 1.4 0.8 0.5 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.5 1.1 2.0 2.4 2.6 2.9 3.1 4.3 5.2 5.4 5.3 4.6 3.6 3.1 2.6 2.4 2.8 3.2 3.8 5.0 5.4 5.4 5.1 4.0 3.0 2.3 1.5 0.9 0.6 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.5 1.0 1.5 1.8 2.4 3.4 1.5 2.2 2.8 3.6 4.5 4.8 4.7 4.0 3.5 3.1 2.7 2.6 2.8 3.2 3.6 4.3 4.9 4.9 4.4 3.6 2.8 2.2 1.4 0.9 0.6 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.9 1.3 1.6 2.4 3.0 1.3 1.9 2.5 3.1 3.7 3.9 4.0 3.8 3.5 3.1 2.8 2.6 2.8 3.1 3.5 3.8 4.1 4.1 3.8 3.3 2.7 2.1 1.4 0.9 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.5 0.9 1.4 1.7 2.4 3.3 1.1 1.7 2.3 2.9 3.4 3.7 3.8 3.7 3.5 3.1 2.8 2.7 2.8 3.0 3.4 3.7 3.9 3.9 3.6 3.1 2.6 1.9 1.3 0.8 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.5 1.1 1.9 2.3 2.6 2.9 0.6 1.3 2.0 2.5 3.0 3.3 3.6 3.7 3.5 3.1 2.8 2.7 2.7 2.9 3.2 3.4 3.7 3.6 3.4 2.9 2.4 1.8 1.2 0.8 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.5 1.2 2.0 2.5 2.7 2.9 1.8 2.4 2.8 3.3 3.9 4.1 4.0 3.4 2.9 2.7 2.7 2.8 3.1 3.6 3.9 3.8 3.5 2.8 2.2 1.7 1.1 0.7 0.5 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.3 0.5 1.0 1.7 2.0 2.5 3.3 1.7 2.4 2.9 3.6 4.2 4.3 4.2 3.8 3.1 2.8 2.7 2.7 3.0 3.7 3.8 3.8 3.6 2.9 2.2 1.6 1.1 0.6 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.9 1.4 1.8 2.5 3.2 1.8 2.5 3.0 3.8 4.3 4.5 4.3 3.9 3.1 2.8 2.7 2.7 2.9 3.5 3.7 3.7 3.4 2.8 2.0 1.5 1.0 0.6 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.5 1.0 1.5 1.8 2.6 3.3 1.5 2.1 2.8 3.3 4.0 4.6 4.7 4.5 4.0 3.1 2.8 2.6 2.6 2.7 3.2 3.4 3.4 3.1 2.4 1.8 1.4 0.9 0.6 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.5 1.1 1.7 2.1 2.5 3.0 1.2 1.8 2.5 3.2 3.8 4.3 4.7 4.8 4.4 3.8 3.2 2.7 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.6 2.8 2.8 2.5 2.0 1.6 1.2 0.8 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.6 1.0 1.5 1.9 2.0 2.1 0.7 1.0 1.5 2.2 2.9 3.6 4.2 4.7 4.9 4.7 4.3 3.8 3.2 2.7 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.2 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.1 0.7 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.8 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.5 0.9 0.7 0.8 1.2 1.8 2.6 3.3 4.1 5.1 5.8 5.9 5.2 4.5 3.8 3.2 2.6 2.4 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.6 1.3 0.9 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.0 1.2 2.0 2.9 3.5 3.5 3.0 2.1 1.9 2.5 3.4 3.4 3.2 1.9 0.8 0.2 0.8 1.1 1.5 2.1 3.0 3.8 4.8 6.1 6.5 6.5 5.9 4.7 3.9 3.2 2.6 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.5 1.2 0.9 0.6 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.2 1.9 2.3 2.5 2.5 2.3 1.9 1.8 2.1 2.4 2.4 2.2 1.7 0.8 0.4 0.9 1.0 1.3 1.8 2.5 3.5 4.4 5.5 6.6 6.9 6.7 6.1 4.9 3.9 3.2 2.7 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.6 1.3 0.9 0.6 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.6 0.8 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.0 1.2 1.8 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 0.9 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.8 1.1 1.5 1.8 2.1 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.3 1.7 2.2 3.0 4.0 5.0 6.0 7.1 7.2 6.9 6.3 4.8 3.9 3.3 2.9 2.8 2.8 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.3 1.9 1.5 1.0 0.7 0.4 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 1.1 1.5 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.3 1.3 0.8 0.5 0.5 0.7 1.0 1.5 1.9 2.3 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.5 2.2 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.6 2.0 2.6 3.4 4.4 5.3 6.0 6.8 7.1 6.7 5.7 4.5 3.8 3.3 3.0 3.0 3.2 3.5 3.7 3.6 3.2 2.7 2.3 1.7 1.2 0.8 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.6 0.8 1.2 1.8 2.4 2.9 3.6 4.0 3.9 3.3 2.7 2.3 1.9 1.7 1.8 2.2 2.9 3.8 4.9 6.0 6.7 6.7 6.3 5.8 5.0 4.2 3.6 3.2 3.2 3.3 3.7 4.4 4.8 4.8 4.1 3.2 2.6 2.0 1.4 1.0 0.6 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.9 1.4 2.1 2.7 3.7 4.7 5.0 4.9 4.2 3.1 2.6 2.1 1.8 1.9 2.4 3.1 4.0 5.5 6.5 7.0 7.0 6.2 5.3 4.6 3.8 3.2 3.0 3.1 3.4 4.1 5.0 5.2 5.2 4.8 3.7 3.0 2.4 1.7 1.1 0.7 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.6 0.9 1.4 2.2 2.9 4.1 4.9 5.3 5.0 4.6 3.4 2.8 2.2 1.8 1.8 2.4 3.1 4.0 5.4 6.2 6.7 6.5 5.8 4.7 4.0 3.2 2.7 2.6 2.9 3.3 4.1 5.0 5.3 5.2 4.9 3.9 3.3 2.8 2.1 1.5 0.9 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.9 1.4 2.2 2.9 4.0 4.9 5.2 5.0 4.5 3.3 2.7 2.2 1.8 1.8 2.3 3.0 3.7 5.1 5.8 6.0 5.9 5.0 4.0 3.4 2.8 2.4 2.3 2.6 3.0 3.7 4.7 5.1 5.0 4.6 3.7 3.4 3.2 2.7 2.1 1.2 0.5 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.9 1.4 2.0 2.6 3.4 4.4 4.7 4.6 3.9 3.0 2.5 2.0 1.7 1.7 2.1 2.7 3.3 4.2 5.0 5.2 4.9 4.0 3.3 2.8 2.3 2.0 2.0 2.3 2.7 3.1 3.7 4.2 4.2 3.7 3.2 3.1 3.1 3.0 2.8 1.6 0.6 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.8 1.2 1.8 2.3 2.8 3.3 3.5 3.4 3.0 2.6 2.2 1.8 1.6 1.6 1.9 2.3 2.7 3.2 3.7 3.8 3.6 3.2 2.7 2.3 1.9 1.7 1.7 1.9 2.3 2.6 2.9 3.1 3.1 2.9 2.8 2.9 3.0 3.1 3.8 2.2 0.9 0.5 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.7 1.1 1.5 2.0 2.4 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.6 2.2 1.9 1.5 1.3 1.3 1.6 1.9 2.3 2.7 2.9 3.0 2.9 2.6 2.2 1.9 1.5 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.9 2.1 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.6 2.9 3.2 4.8 3.0 1.3 0.7 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.9 1.3 1.7 2.0 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.1 1.9 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.1 1.3 1.6 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.1 1.8 1.5 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.3 2.6 3.0 4.3 2.6 1.1 0.6 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.8 1.1 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.9 2.1 2.4 2.7 3.1 1.7 0.6 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.8 1.1 1.4 1.7 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.4 1.6 1.8 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.4 1.6 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.1 2.4 2.5 2.2 1.2 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.8 1.2 1.5 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.1 1.9 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.7 1.9 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.7 1.9 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.1 1.6 1.0 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.9 1.3 1.6 2.0 2.4 2.6 2.5 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.3 1.6 1.9 2.2 2.6 2.7 2.4 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 1.1 1.4 1.6 2.0 2.3 2.6 2.6 2.4 2.2 2.3 2.2 1.9 1.4 0.8 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.9 1.4 1.8 2.4 3.0 3.1 3.1 2.6 2.0 1.7 1.3 1.1 1.1 1.3 1.7 2.1 2.7 3.1 3.2 3.0 2.4 1.8 1.5 1.2 1.1 1.2 1.5 1.8 2.3 2.9 3.1 3.2 2.9 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.0 1.5 0.9 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.9 1.4 1.9 2.6 3.1 3.3 3.1 2.8 2.1 1.7 1.3 1.1 1.1 1.4 1.8 2.2 2.9 3.2 3.3 3.1 2.6 1.9 1.6 1.2 1.1 1.2 1.5 1.9 2.5 3.1 3.3 3.2 3.1 2.6 2.6 2.7 2.4 1.9 1.1 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.9 1.4 1.8 2.5 3.1 3.2 3.1 2.8 2.1 1.7 1.3 1.1 1.1 1.4 1.7 2.1 2.8 3.1 3.2 3.0 2.5 1.9 1.5 1.2 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.8 2.4 3.0 3.2 3.2 3.0 2.6 2.5 2.6 2.7 2.6 1.5 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.5 0.9 1.3 1.6 2.1 2.7 2.9 2.8 2.4 1.8 1.5 1.2 1.0 1.0 1.2 1.6 1.9 2.4 2.9 2.9 2.7 2.1 1.7 1.4 1.1 1.0 1.1 1.4 1.7 2.1 2.7 2.9 2.9 2.6 2.3 2.4 2.6 2.9 3.6 2.1 0.8 0.5 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.7 1.1 1.4 1.7 2.0 2.1 2.1 1.8 1.6 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.6 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.0 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.0 2.2 2.2 2.0 2.0 2.2 2.6 3.1 4.7 2.9 1.3 0.7 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.6 0.9 1.1 1.4 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.7 2.0 2.4 2.9 4.4 2.7 1.2 0.7 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.1 2.6 3.2 2.0 0.9 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.2 1.5 1.9 2.4 2.5 1.7 1.0 0.6 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.5 1.8 2.1 2.2 1.9 1.3 0.9 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.3 0.5 0.7 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.8 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.6 2.0 2.4 2.2 1.6 1.0 0.5 0.2 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.6 1.1 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.1 0.8 0.6 0.9 1.6 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 2.1 2.2 2.1 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.9 1.7 2.3 3.1 2.3 1.6 1.0 0.5 0.2 0.1 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.7 1.2 1.8 2.0 2.3 2.5 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.2 0.8 0.7 1.2 2.3 2.3 2.0 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.0 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.0 2.9 4.2 2.5 1.8 1.0 0.5 0.2 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.9 1.6 2.5 3.7 4.3 3.4 2.3 1.5 1.0 0.8 0.9 1.7 3.5 2.6 2.0 1.7 1.7 2.0 2.7 3.7 4.1 3.2 2.4 1.9 1.7 2.0 2.6 3.4 4.2 3.7 2.8 2.3 2.1 2.4 2.9 3.8 4.2 3.2 2.4 2.1 2.0 3.2 4.7 2.7 1.8 1.0 0.5 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.9 1.4 2.2 2.7 2.0 1.3 0.9 0.6 0.8 1.2 2.3 4.6 3.0 2.0 1.5 1.2 1.3 1.8 2.8 3.2 2.3 1.5 1.2 1.1 1.2 1.7 2.5 3.3 2.7 1.9 1.4 1.3 1.4 1.9 2.9 3.3 2.3 1.6 1.3 1.3 2.2 3.6 2.3 1.7 1.0 0.5 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.4 0.9 1.1 0.7 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.5 0.9 1.8 3.9 2.6 1.8 1.2 0.8 0.5 0.6 1.0 1.2 0.8 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.9 1.2 1.0 0.6 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.6 1.0 1.2 0.8 0.5 0.5 0.5 1.3 2.3 2.0 1.5 0.9 0.5 0.2 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.5 0.6 0.4 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.4 1.1 2.5 2.2 1.6 1.1 0.6 0.3 0.3 0.6 0.7 0.4 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.5 0.7 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.6 0.7 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.3 0.8 1.5 1.7 1.4 0.9 0.4 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.7 1.5 1.8 1.5 1.0 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.5 0.8 1.0 1.0 0.7 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.5 0.9 1.2 1.2 0.8 0.5 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.3 0.4 0.6 0.6 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.4 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.0 0.4 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.6 0.8 1.1 1.7 2.7 2.9 1.9 1.0 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.3 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.7 0.8 1.0 1.5 2.3 2.5 1.7 1.1 0.7 0.5 0.5 0.8 1.2 1.9 2.1 1.5 0.8 0.4 0.1

0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.3 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.7 0.5 0.6 0.9 1.3 2.3 3.1 2.3 1.3 0.8 0.4

0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.6 2.0 1.7 1.0 0.7 0.4

0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.4

0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.3

0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.2

0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.6 0.6 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

1.4 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.4 1.1 0.9 0.6 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

2.0 2.2 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.0 1.6 1.2 0.8 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

2.5 2.9 3.2 3.2 2.9 2.5 2.1 1.6 1.1 0.7 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Reviewer

Designer

Drawn By

Hard copy is intended to be

24"x36" when plotted.  Scale(s)

indicated and graphic quality may

not be accurate for any other size.

Manager

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

© C o p y r i g h t   2 0 21

A l l  R i g h t s  R e s e r v e d

D

C

B

A

54321

FISHBECK PROJ. NO. 201289

-

S
t
o
r
e
 
N

o
.
 
O

R
I

1
0

2
5

 
S

.
L

a
p

e
e

r
 
R

d

O
r
i
o

n
,
 
 
M

I
 
4

8
3

6
0

on the net at:  www.missdig.org
1-800-482-7171

3 full working days before  you  dig:

Michigan's
One-Call

Utility
Notification

Organization

Call  MISS DIG

JTV

3/24/2021 SLU / 50% SPA

C-800

BRT

BRT

ARK

S
i
t
e
 
L
i
g
h
t
i
n
g
 
P

h
o
t
o
m

e
t
r
i
c
 
P

l
a
n

A1

SITE LIGHTING PHOTOMETRIC PLAN

GENERAL NOTES

172



Reviewer

Designer

Drawn By

Hard copy is intended to be

24"x36" when plotted.  Scale(s)

indicated and graphic quality may

not be accurate for any other size.

Manager

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

© C o p y r i g h t   2 0 21

A l l  R i g h t s  R e s e r v e d

D

C

B

A

54321

FISHBECK PROJ. NO. 201289

-

S
t
o
r
e
 
N

o
.
 
O

R
I

1
0

2
5

 
S

.
L

a
p

e
e

r
 
R

d

O
r
i
o

n
,
 
 
M

I
 
4

8
3

6
0

on the net at:  www.missdig.org
1-800-482-7171

3 full working days before  you  dig:

Michigan's
One-Call

Utility
Notification
Organization

Call  MISS DIG

JTV

3/24/2021 SLU / 50% SPA

C-801

BRT

BRT

ARK

S
i
t
e
 
L
i
g
h
t
i
n
g
 
P

h
o
t
o
m

e
t
r
i
c
 
P

l
a
n

Luminaire Schedule

Symbol Qty Label Lum. Lumens
Description Manufacturer Tag

8 SLRA3 10991 WHITE TYPE III, 71W, 4000K POLE MOUNTED LED Lithonia Lighting RSX2-LED-P1-40K-R3-XVOLT-RPA

3 SLRB9 6115 WHITE TYPE IV, 51W, 4000K POLE MTD LED WITH GLARE SHIELD Lithonia Lighting RSX1-LED-P1-40K-R4-XVOLT-RPA-EGS

6 SLRC 41519 WHITE TYPE V, 312W, 4000K POLE MOUNTED LED Lithonia Lighting RSX3-LED-P4-40K-R5-XVOLT-RPA

5 SLRC6 25663 WHITE TYPE V, 187W, 4000K POLE MOUNTED LED Lithonia Lighting RSX2-LED-P4-40K-R5-XVOLT-RPA

1 SLRC7 10104 WHITE TYPE V, 72W, 4000K POLE MOUNTED LED Lithonia Lighting RSX1-LED-P2-40K-R5-XVOLT-RPA

1 SLW 2490 WHITE TYPE II MEDIUM, 19W, 4000K WALL MOUNTED LED Cree Inc XSPW-B-WM-2ME-2L-40K-UL-WH

1 SLW11 4282 WHITE TYPE III MEDIUM, 31W, 4000K WALL MOUNTED LED Cree Inc XSPW-B-WM-3ME-4L-40K-UL-WH

7 SLW5 8763 WHITE TYPE IV MEDIUM, 72W, 4000K WALL MOUNTED LED Cree Inc XSPW-B-WM-4ME-8L-40K-UL-WH

4 SLW8 4270 WHITE TYPE II MEDIUM, 31W, 4000K WALL MOUNTED LED Cree Inc XSPW-B-WM-2ME-4L-40K-UL-WH

Statistical Area Summary

Label CalcType Units
Avg Max

Min

5' Plane Above Surface

Illuminance
Fc 2.09 7.2 0.2Parking Area

Illuminance
Fc 2.17 10.5 0.0

D5

STATISTICAL AREA SUMMARY

E5

LUMINAIRE SCHEDULE

173



174



175



Charter Township of Orion
Planning & Zoning Department
2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
P: (248) 391-0304 ext. 5001; Fax (248) 391-1454

INFORMATIONAL ONLY

TO: The Charter Township of Orion Zoning Board of Appeals

FROM: Lynn Harrison, Planning & Zoning Coordinator

DATE: April 21, 2021

RE: Dates which cases can be postponed to

If the Zoning Board of Appeals makes a motion to postpone a case to an actual future 
meeting date (date certain), vs. requiring them to return within a certain number of days 
the Township does not have to re-advertise or re-mail notices to surrounding properties.  
By postponing a case to a “date certain”, the Township avoids incurring advertising costs 
and, in many cases, assists the applicant in returning in a timelier manner. The ZBA By-
Laws state the postponement of a case shall not exceed sixty (60) days from the date the 
matter was first scheduled on a ZBA agenda. 

Listed below are upcoming ZBA meetings.  When a case needs to be postponed, if the 
applicant can commit to one of these dates, they should be used to postpone to a “date 
certain” within the motion, whenever possible.  If a case is postponed to a “date certain” 
please be sure to keep all the information from your packet for that case until the future 
date.

May 10, 2021 (this meeting has 10 cases on it)
May 24, 2021
June 14, 2021

176



177



178


